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UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DM

BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND OUTLOOK
Our Vision and Purpose
Our vision and purpose is “To give everyone access to trusted and

affordable care - FEFTE AESAIEE LA BIEMEERERERSE.

Our vision and purpose, is what has propelled our growth in the past
29 years. By focusing on such vision, we have made our doctors
and patients proud. Our doctors are proud because they can have
a choice to serve their own patients at their own pricing, but also
choose to serve the greater purpose of delivering affordable and
accessible healthcare to patients by joining our UMP Network.
Our patients are also proud because they know that they can seek
healthcare services at convenient locations and at affordable price
for the services they require.

We believe that our vision should not be limited to the Hong Kong
market only. We wanted our vision to be made public so that more
similar minded people can join us on our path. We believe our
vision stands true universally, but more so, we believe the China
healthcare market overall can benefit from corporations with such
vision to contribute in tackling the problems that China is currently
facing and to establishing trust between doctors and patients.

Our Vision for China

A key initiative that we have rolled out in the past 2 years is to
take on a bold challenge to tackle the root of the China healthcare
problems. At the risk of over-simplifying the various problems
that China is currently facing, we believe that the current China
healthcare system that centres around specialists care, with no
established system of patient triage, is bound to exacerbate the
current “difficult to seek care, expensive to seek care” (BREE + &
7 &) problem that has been facing the Chinese government for the
past decade.

Focusing on such model, the Chinese government has taken bold
steps by putting the family doctor model at the core of China’s
healthcare reform. China has publicly stated that it wants, on
average, 3 family doctors (2EIE 4) for every 10,000 people by
year 2020. The Chinese population, after years of being used to
the specialists care model, are generally not accustomed to what a
family doctor is.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The important role Family Doctors play in China’s
healthcare reform

UMP China has stayed true to its vision throughout. We have from
the beginning been emphasizing on the important role that family
doctors play in delivering affordable and accessible care. With such
a vision, we asked ourselves how UMP China can break the current

vicious circle of lack of trust in family doctors in China.

We launched our General Practice Oriented Learning and
Development programme (GOLD, www.goldgptraining.com) in
2017. The purpose of the GOLD programme is to educate doctors
on how to become an all-rounded family doctor through equipping
them with the latest international know-hows and through on-hand
trainings to equip them with the necessary knowledge and
communication skills required to develop trust between them and

their patients.

The GOLD programme has since caught the attention of many
similarly minded doctors and government officials. What started
as an internal training programme in 2017 has now gained the
endorsement of various local governments, particularly the regional
governments within the Greater Bay Area. We have a strong
conviction that we are at the start of a meaningful movement, one in
which UMP China, by empowering the doctors with the necessary
skills, knowledge, and by explaining to them our purpose behind the
GOLD programme is to honor our vision and purpose that everyone
should have access to trusted and affordable healthcare, we will be
developing into an organisation that will act as the bridge to connect
patients with their trusted family doctor, and to empower the doctors

we train to become trusted family doctors to their patients.

Our GOLD programme

The GOLD programme has obtained accreditation from the Royal
College of General Practitioners from the UK (“RCGP”), which,
as extracted from RCGP’s website, is an “identifiable symbol of
quality assurance that associates educational activities with the
professionalism, expertise and commitment to the highest possible

standards of general practice”.
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UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Management Discussion and Analysis

MIEJE;THH& *ﬁ'

We are currently working with regional governments to roll out
our training programme. We believe that the doctors enrolled on
our training programme all share our vision and purpose, have an
eagerness to learn, to improve, and will become our trusted partners

who wish to deliver quality primary care services to their patients.

We begin our 2019 with a clear purpose, and we thank all of our
shareholders and employees for your trust, your dedication and
your confidence in us in pursuing our vision and purpose. We look
forward to updating you further on our development in our annual

results announcement.

OUR BUSINESS

UMP’s business scope consists of the following business lines:

1. Hong Kong & Macau Corporate Healthcare Solution
Services
UMP provides corporate healthcare solutions through the
design and administration of tailored healthcare benefits
plans for its Contract Customers. UMP aims to provide
convenient, reliable, coordinated, comprehensive and
affordable healthcare services through the well-established
and multi-specialties UMP Network. As at 31 December 2018,
the UMP Network comprises more than 600 points of services

located across Hong Kong and Macau.

The Group’s Contract Customers comprise (i) insurance
companies, which enter into contracts with the Group for
healthcare services for their policyholders or employees
of their policyholders and (ii) corporations, which enter
into contracts with the Group for healthcare services for
their employees and/or their dependants. When designing
healthcare benefits plans, the Group collaborates closely with
the Contract Customers and designs and refines corporate
healthcare benefits plans, with each plan tailored to each
customer’s needs based on factors such as industry or
occupational health-related concerns, scope of healthcare
benefits desired, employee demographic as well as their
budget.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Hong Kong & Macau Clinical Healthcare Services

UMP provides medical, dental and auxiliary services to
Self-paid Patients. For medical services, UMP provides (i)
general practice services, which serves as the first point of
contact for the patients and (ii) specialist services covering
more than 18 different specialties. For dental services, UMP
provides both primary dental care and secondary dental care
such as dental implants. For auxiliary services, UMP provides
services such as medical imaging and laboratory services,

physiotherapy and vision care.

PRC Healthcare Business

Our PRC Healthcare Business currently consists of (i) health
check-up business, (ii) corporate healthcare solutions business,
and (iii) selected outpatient services such as family medicine
and paediatric services within the clinics we own and operate.
As our corporate healthcare solutions business is still at a
development stage, the revenue and operating profit for
this business segment is primarily contributed by our health
check-up business. Our current focus is on the development of
our PRC Healthcare Business in Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou
and Shenzhen. We have also commenced our medical
education business, the details of which are set out on www.
goldgptraining.com.
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UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEFWE DM

BUSINESS LINES ANALYSIS

Hong Kong & Macau Corporate Healthcare Solution Services
Revenue for this business line has increased 12.1% from HK$108.2
million to HK$121.3 million (before intersegment elimination)
due to a general increase in average spending per visit, while our
operating profit (operating profit before tax and before non-recurring
items) has decreased 15.9% from HK$19.1 million to HK$16.1
million. The decrease of operating profit was attributable to the
increase of professional services fees paid to our Affiliated Clinics,
which is caused by the timing mismatch between the expected
increase in the pricing of our contracts with our corporate customers
and insurance partners. We generally aim to increase professional
service fees paid to our Affiliated Clinics as we increase the pricing
of our contracts with our customers. We expect the operating profit
margin for this segment to gradually normalize back to its historical

levels.

Hong Kong & Macau Clinical Healthcare Services

Revenue for this business line has increased approximately 25.7%
from HK$131.2 million to HK$164.8 million (before intersegment
elimination) due to a general increase in patient visits, while our
operating profit (operating profit before tax and before non-recurring
items) has increased approximately 67.9% from HK$11.2 million
to HK$18.9 million. The increase in revenue is in part due to the
expansion of auxiliary services through various acquisitions of
laboratory, medical imaging and physiotherapy businesses in the
second half of FY2018 and THFY2019.

PRC Healthcare Business

Revenue for this business line has increased 4.8% from HK$23.3
million to HK$24.4 million (before intersegment elimination)
primarily due to the increase in the number of health check-ups,
while our operating loss (operating loss before tax and before
non-recurring items) has decreased approximately of 88.1% from
HK$5.0 million to HK$0.6 million. The decrease in operating
loss was primarily attributable to the effective control of our
administration costs in Beijing and Shanghai headquarters.

The following table sets out the revenue and operating profit for our
business lines for the six months ended 31 December 2018 and the
corresponding period for comparison:
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Revenue by business lines

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Six months ended 31 December Increase
BZE12A3181L<EA 5
2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FAT
(Restated)
(&BEF))
Hong Kong & Macau Corporate BRI EER

Healthcare Solution Services IRIEERR T RIRTS 121,293 108,236 12.1%
Hong Kong & Macau Clinical & NORPI BRI B8 &

Healthcare Services RER 164,805 131,156 25.7%
PRC Healthcare Business B R 2 26 75 24,387 23,260 4.8%
TOTAL 43 310,485 262,652 18.2%
Operating profit by business lines R TERE) 4 LT H

Six months ended 31 December Increase/
HZ=1283181E~EA (decrease)
2018 2017 #
20184 20174 OR )
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAET
(Restated)
(&E5)
Hong Kong & Macau Corporate BEAERBADEERE
Healthcare Solution Services IRIERR IR T 2= ARTE 16,062 19,105 (15.9Y%
Operating profit margin R PR 13.2% 17.7%
Hong Kong & Macau Clinical &8 FOR PR K B8R
Healthcare Services IR AR 1% 18,876 11,245 67.9%
Operating profit margin 7 A A = 11.5% 8.6%
PRC Healthcare Business B R R S T (599) (5,015) (88.1)%
(1) Business lines revenue presented above are before intersegment sales (1) LRV EBSERABETS PBREIEEKE
elimination. Al °
2) Operating profit by business lines represent operating profit before tax for 2) REFBZE DK ETE AR EEERER T AT

each business line and excluding non-recurring items.
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FINANCIAL REVIEWS
1THFY2019 compared to THFY2018

Revenue

During THFY2019, we primarily generated revenue from (i) the
provision of corporate healthcare solutions to Contract Customers
in Hong Kong and Macau, (ii) the provision of clinical healthcare
services in Hong Kong and Macau and (iii) the provision of health
check-up services for local residents and corporate employees in the
PRC within the PRC Healthcare Business.

Total consolidated revenue increased by 19.7% from HK$218.6
million in THFY2018 to HK$261.7 million in THFY2019, primarily
due to (i) an increase in revenue from HK$195.3 million to
HK$237.3 million from the provision of corporate healthcare
solution services to Contract Customers and provision of clinical
healthcare services to Self-paid Patients in Hong Kong and Macau,
and (ii) an increase in revenue from HK$23.3 million to HK$24.4

million from the PRC Healthcare Business.

Provision of corporate healthcare solution services to Contract

Customers in Hong Kong and Macau

Revenue from the provision of corporate healthcare solution services
to Contract Customers in Hong Kong and Macau increased 11.9%
from HK$107.8 million in THFY2018 to HK$120.6 million in
THFY2019.

. Medical. Revenue generated from the provision of Medical
Services to Contract Customers increased by 11.5% from
HK$99.9 million for THFY2018 to HK$111.4 million for
THFY2019, primarily due to an increase in the average
spending per visit.

. Dental. Revenue generated from the provision of Dental
Services to Contract Customers increased by 15.2% from
HK$7.9 million for THFY2018 to HK$9.1 million for
THFY2019, primarily due to an increase in the number of visits
from the patients seeking Dental Services.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Provision of clinical healthcare services in Hong Kong and Macau

. Medical. Revenue generated from the provision of Medical
Services to Self-paid Patients increased by 42.5% from
HK$60.4 million for THFY2018 to HK$86.1 million for
THFY2019, primarily due to an increase in the number of
visits from patients seeking our Auxiliary Services.

] Dental. Revenue generated from the provision of Dental
Services to Self-paid Patients slightly increased by
approximately 12.9% from HK$27.1 million for THFY2018
to HK$30.7 million for THFY2019 due to the increase in
number of self-paid patient visits.

PRC Healthcare Business

Revenue generated from the PRC Healthcare Business increased
from HK$23.3 million in THFY2018 to HK$24.4 million in
THFY2019, primarily due to an increase in the number of health
check-ups for the PRC residents traveling abroad for study or
for work and the health check-ups for corporate employees and

insurance scheme members.

Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains primarily comprise administrative support
fees (including fees derived from providing administrative support
to Affiliated Doctors, Affiliated Dentists and Affiliated Auxiliary
Services Providers), dividend income and gain on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and interest income from
held-to-maturity investments and bank savings.

Other income and gains increased by 130.5% from HK$5.9 million
in THFY2018 to HK$13.6 million in THFY2019. The significant
increase was primarily due to the gain on disposal of a subsidiary
which was the beneficial owner of the investment properties upon
the completion of disposal in September 2018.

Professional Services Expenses

Professional services expenses primarily comprise fees paid to
Doctors, Dentists and Auxiliary Services Providers for Medical
Services, Dental Services and Auxiliary Services rendered within the
UMP Network, as well as fees paid to third party laboratories and
testing centres for services rendered to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DM

Professional services expenses increased by 24.1% from HK$86.3
million for THFY2018 to HK$107.1 million for THFY2019, primarily
due to an increase in the cost of services rendered by doctors,
dentists and other professionals. We generally aim to increase
professional service fees paid to our Affiliated Clinics as we increase
the pricing of our contracts with our customers. However, there is
also generally a timing mismatch between the expected increase in
the pricing of our contracts and the service fees we pay out to our
service providers. We expect the operating profit margin for this

segment to gradually normalize back to its historical levels.

Employee Benefit Expense

Employee benefit expense primarily comprise salaries and related
costs, equity-settled share-based payment expense, as well as
pension scheme contributions for nurses and administrative
personnel, and also include those of the Directors and key

management personnel.

Employee benefit expense increased by 16.2% from HK$57.9
million for THFY2018 to HK$67.3 million for THFY2019. The
increase was mainly due to general increase in staff costs and the
recognition of staffing expenses upon the acquisitions of subsidiaries
(please refer to “Business Combinations” in the notes to the
Condensed Consolidated financial statements for details). However,
employee expenses as a percentage of revenue has decreased from
26.5% for THFY2018 to 25.7% for THFY2019. This reflects our
ability to generate greater operating leverage as we expand our

businesses into different service areas.

Property Rental and Related Expenses

Property rental and related expenses increased by 20.3% from
HK$20.7 million for THFY2018 to HK$24.9 million for THFY2019,
primarily due to the recognition of rental expenses upon the
acquisitions of subsidiaries (please refer to “Business Combinations”
in the notes to the Condensed Consolidated financial statements for
details) and the increase in rent for those existing premises for which
leases were renewed. Rental expenses as a percentage of revenue
has remained at 9.5% for both THFY2018 and THFY2019.
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Cost of Inventories Consumed

Cost of inventories consumed increased by 16.1% from HK$11.2
million for THFY2018 to HK$13.0 million for THFY2019, primarily
due to an increase in the amount of drugs and other medical
consumables consumed for the provision of clinical healthcare
services in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC. Such increase is
generally in line with the increase in revenue from the provision of
clinical healthcare services in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC in
THFY2019.

Other Expenses, net
Other expenses, net primarily comprise reversal of provision
of impairment loss, net made to the Group’s amount due from/
to associated companies and joint venture companies and
general overhead expenses such as utilities, operation and other
administrative expenses as well as repair and maintenance expenses
incurred with respect to the Group’s offices and medical equipment,

audit fees, printing expenses and bank charges.

Other expenses, net, increased by 295.5% from approximately
HK$15.7 million in THFY2018 to HK$62.1 million in THFY2019,
primarily due to the recognition of approximately HK$46 million
non-cash expense in connection with the issuance of Warrants and
the vesting of Warrants to Zheng He during the period.
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Summary of operational data for THFY2019 with comparative 20198/ BNFEE F ¥ FHLE HIEHE2018

figures for THFY2018 PRFEL¥FURBEBHME
Revenue by operating segment L7 5 5 A
Six months ended 31 December Increase/
HZ12A31HIEREA (decrease)
2018 2017 #gm/
20185 20174 CRL)
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET AT
(Unaudited
(Unaudited) and restated)
(REEZ

(REER) REET)

Provision of corporate healthcare BEHOCEBBERE
solution services R R IR 121,834 107,879 12.9%
Medical == 112,691 99,985 12.7%
Dental R 9,143 7,894 15.8%
Provision of clinical healthcare R KB RARE
services AR 7% 139,867 110,763 26.3%
Medical BE 109,209 83,619 30.6%
Dental 7F 30,658 27,144 12.9%
TOTAL a5 261,701 218,642 19.7%
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEEF WK

Number of visits by operating segment A& 5 B & 5 2 R
Six months ended 31 December Increase/
BZ12A31HLEXEA (decrease)
2018 2017 i,/
20184 20174 CRLA)
Provision of corporate healthcare RULEBRRR
solution services iR T3 R AR % 613,218 649,312 (5.6%)
Medical e 600,858 638,061 (5.8%)
Dental ZFE 12,360 11,251 9.9%
Provision of clinical healthcare RHRREERRRE
services R 7% 131,737 90,153 46.1%
Medical e 109,576 70,391 55.7%
Dental ZFEl 22,161 19,762 12.1%
TOTAL &3t 744,955 739,465 0.7%
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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KEY FINANCIAL POSITION ITEMS

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost/Held to maturity Investments

Financial assets at amortised cost primarily represent the marketable
corporate bonds issued by listed corporations with fixed interest
rates from 3.8 to 9.3% per annum. The marketable debt securities
which will mature within one year and more than one year are
classified as current assets and non-current assets, respectively.
The Group receives related interest payments semi-annually and

annually.

As at 31 December 2018 and 30 June 2018, the Group’s financial
assets at amortised cost/held to maturity investments amounted to
HK$66.8 million (of which HK$12.4 million is classified as current
assets and HK$54.4 million is classified as non-current assets)
and HK$69.5 million (of which HK$10.9 million is classified as
current assets and HK$58.6 million is classified as non-current
assets), respectively. The decrease was primarily due to the early
redemption by one of the debt securities issuer in October 2018.

Deposits

Deposits primarily represent the non-current portion of the rental
deposits and the deposits paid for the property, plant and equipment
and other non-current assets. The rental deposits which will expire
within one year and more than one year are classified as current

assets and non-current assets, respectively.

As at 31 December 2018 and 30 June 2018, the Group’s deposits
amounted to HK$41.7 million and HK$15.7 million, respectively.
The increase was primarily due to the deposit paid for the purchase
of 60% of the total issued share capital of a medical centre
principally providing dermatological services in Hong Kong. Please
refer to the Company’s announcements dated 22 November 2018,
24 December 2018 and 23 January 2019.
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Trade Receivables

Trade receivables primarily comprise receivables due from Contract
Customers under fee for service plans and capitation plans. Most
Self-paid Patients of medical and dental practices settle in cash,
although payments made by credit card will be classified as trade
receivables until they are settled (typically within two to three days).
Contract Customers typically settle payments within one to two
months of the provision of services to their members. The Group
allows an average credit period of 30 to 90 days to its Contract
Customers. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables
are non-interest-bearing.

As at 31 December 2018 and 30 June 2018, the Group’s trade
receivables amounted to HK$83.2 million and HK$78.8 million,
respectively. The increase from 30 June 2018 to 31 December 2018
was in line with the Group’s increased revenue in THFY2019 as
compared to THFY2018.

Trade Payables

Trade payables primarily comprise professional fees accrued
and owing to Affiliated Doctors and amounts owing to suppliers
of medical equipment and consumables. Trade payables are
non-interest-bearing and are normally settled within one to three

months.

The Group’s trade payables remain stable at the amount of HK$44.1
million and HK$39.2 as at 31 December 2018 and 30 June 2018,
respectively.

Net Change in Financial Position

The Group’s net assets amounted to HK$648.0 million and
HK$631.1 million as at 31 December 2018 and 30 June 2018,
respectively. The increase was primarily due to the reserve made
for the issuance of Warrants and the vesting of Warrants of the
Company to Zheng He, partly offset by the net loss for THFY2019
that was resulted by the recognition of HK$46 million non-cash
equity-settled share based payment expenses in connection with
such Warrants.

BEEENWE DM

B % BWRE
g5 RUIAT 2B RUIZ RGN B E
R ABERBHE A THNAANT P HFIA -

ABOBEZBEMTROEENAEBE AR
SHEE BEUNERRINOFELSH (B

FRM=KRA) BT ABZRWHE- &
MEPBEERHMRETEXEN —E=ME
ARBENR AEBETHEANEPNT
BEEHR30E90H - AEBERNE FEW
REHBMFEEANERKEMERERTRF
[E o BB RUKIETE R ©

M2018F12 A31H &2018%F6A30H » A%
EZ5EWRED R A83.28 & BT 78.8
BEXEIT H2018F6 A3 0B 28 LA =
2018512 H31H 2 U EAREE 720198 X
FEEFFOHRAE2018HBFE ¥ Fik
FERMNBERER

BEZRNRE
BORNRETIERRENENHER
MEXERUARENBERE LA EERS
MR- BZENREBETFHE  B—RR—
E=-HAARES -

AREBEMR2018512831H N20185F6H30H
MESENRBEZEBTE 2754188
BILM392B BB T °

B B AR O 3 4 B
AEEMR2018F12H318 K2018%6H30H
B EFHED B A648.08 &8 T MX631.18
EAT - BMEZHR BETRAREZ M E
EHRBEERAARRRESSTEB TEAM - 5
DHE2019 M E L F R F B EMMENE -
ZEEDERREZERREZTEHANI6R
EATERSARSEEEURMD AERO
K PTEL -

17



18

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Management Discussion and Analysis
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has historically funded its operations primarily by cash
generated from operating activities. Upon the listing of the shares of
the Company on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the Group intended
to satisfy its liquidity requirements using a combination of cash
generated from operating activities and net proceeds from the Global
Offering. The Group may also seek to borrow to satisfy liquidity
requirements. As of 31 December 2018, the Group had a cash and
cash equivalents of HK$283.5 million.

As of the date of this Report, the Group did not have any bank
borrowings or outstanding bank loans and did not enter into any

bank loan facilities.

GEARING RATIO
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no net debt. The Group’s

gearing ratio was not applicable as at 31 December 2018.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no significant change in the capital structure of
the Company during the six months ended 31 December 2018.
The capital of the Company comprises ordinary shares and other

reserves.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION OR DISPOSAL OF

SUBSIDIARIES
During THFY2019, the Group’s material acquisitions primarily

were the acquisitions of (i) 55% equity interest in a medical centre
which operates general practice medical services (including general
consultation and vaccination services) for a consideration of HK$15
million, and (ii) 70% equity interest in a group of companies which
are engaging in the provision of medical physiotherapy services
from respective independent third parties in accordance with the
Group’s expansion plan to increase the scope of its medical services
provided to its members and patients. Detailed disclosure is stated in
Note 17 of the Notes to Financial Statements under the heading of
“Business Combinations” on page 72 of this report.

Save as aforesaid, there was no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries undertaken by the Group during THFY2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The capital expenditure during the period was primarily related to
the acquisition of land and building for the Group’s future office
premises and the deposits paid for and expenditures on additions of
property, plant and equipment for the Group’s medical centres. For
THFY2019, the Group incurred capital expenditure in an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$7.1 million (1HFY2018: HK$65.2

million).

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Apart from strengthening the Group’s current business and the future
plans as disclosed in the Prospectus, the Group did not have any
specific future plan for material investments or capital assets as of 31
December 2018.

INDEBTEDNESS

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any material
off-balance sheet arrangements.

Capital Commitment
As at 31 December 2018,
commitment of approximately HK$47.9 million which mainly in

the Group had a material capital

relation to the acquisition of 60% equity interest in a medical centre
principally providing dermatology services in Hong Kong from an
independent third party with details set out in the section headed
“Events After Reporting Period”.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31 December 2018, the Group has pledged certain deposits

with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$1.4 million (30 June 2018:
HK$1.4 million) in connection with a surety bond issued by a bank
in favour of an independent third party for potential damages of
dental equipment and potential disruption of Medical Services, and
a bank guarantee issued by a bank in favour of a landlord for leasing
of a medical centre of the Group.
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total of 453 (30 June

2018: 461) full-time employees. For THFY2019, the staff cost
(including Directors’ remuneration in the form of salaries and other
benefits) was approximately HK$67.3 million (1HFY2018: HK$57.9
million).

The Group ensures that the pay levels of its employees are
competitive and employees are rewarded on a performance
related basis, together with reference to the profitability of the
Group, prevailing remuneration benchmarks in the industry, and
market conditions within the general framework of the Group’s

remuneration system.

In addition, the Company also adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme, where eligible
employees and consultants are entitled to subscribe for the Shares
for their contribution to the Group. As at 31 December 2018,
27,608,000 options remained outstanding out of 48,000,000
options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and
2,600,000 share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
have been exercised during THFY2019. Also, as at 31 December
2018, 13,270,000 options granted under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme remained outstanding and 1,213,000 share options under
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme have been exercised during the
THFY2019.

The Company has also adopted the Share Award Scheme to
provide an incentive and reward to selected participants for their
contribution to the Group. Certain Shares have been purchased and
5,910,000 awarded shares has been granted under the Share Award
Scheme during the period.

The remuneration packages of the Directors are reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board, according
to the relevant Director’s experience, responsibility, workload and
the time devoted to the Group, the Company’s operating results and
comparable market statistics.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INTERIM DIVIDEND
The Board has declared an interim dividend of HKO0.65 cent per

ordinary share for the six months ended 31 December 2018 (FY2017
interim dividend: HKO0.55 cent). The interim dividend will be
payable to the shareholders of the Company whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on Monday, 18 March
2019. It is expected that the interim dividend will be paid on or
about Wednesday, 10 April 2019.
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Corporate Governance Highlights
TREARE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and transparency. The Company confirms
that it has complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
during the six months ended 31 December 2018, save for the
deviation from code provision A.2.1 as mentioned below.

According to code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code,
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong, the Chairman of the Board, is also the Chief
Executive Officer. The Board believes that vesting the roles of both

the roles of the chairman and chief executive should be

chairman and chief executive in an experienced and qualified
person such as Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong provides the Company with
strong and consistent leadership while allowing effective and
efficient planning and implementation of business decisions and
strategies. The Board considers that this structure will not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Group.

The Board will review the corporate governance structure and
practices from time to time and shall make necessary arrangements
when the Board considers appropriate.

THE BOARD

As of the date of this report, the Board comprised nine Directors,
including six executive Directors, namely Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong as
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan,
Jacquen as Managing Director, Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick, Dr.
Sun Man Kin, Michael, Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix and Dr. Lee Pak
Cheung, Patrick; and three independent non-executive Directors,

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,

namely Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John 88s jp, Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald
sBs Jp and Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike.

2018/2019 INTERIM REPORT

B REEARR

KABBOHEFSKEHEEERRER
BB LmBMRE  KARIER BRTXAA
MEREERTREA2. MEZ ERM R
SN BE2018F12A31H L NEAREE BT
LR A SR 4P 2 R EE R SFRIR ST I
163 o

RIFEEBEATRMRXFA2. G - TEETT
BBHEEREY WA EH— ARERE -
RIBIBEREFSIRTATRAER - &
SRR ARBRIBEEELREENS
BRATHEEEIFERITRAER A BARRE
Horm A N MIBENRE - R ERYER
RENEBEL AR SROREINEE
EFERR WEBTEREASEESS
HEREHNEIREEYE -

EFEBITEENEXEARBRER I
RERR/BEERELLELHE -

MRS B A - %%ﬁmmﬁ%%iﬂﬁfz ?

BAMNAITES DRl RFERBRIE E(T”H%I

Jﬁ%ﬁw@%&) BEELT (ERESHLK

B) BRELAE - BXBREBEL . $%H@5‘ﬁ$

&émﬁé S R=(IBMIERITES

B RTHR LA (s HEE A FwL) élﬁ
BEmenEE K TFHt) RIGERBFTE -



2018/2019 A EisR &

BABBEREERA

Corporate Governance Highlights

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of

conduct for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.

Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, the Company
confirmed that the Directors have complied with the Model Code
during the six months ended 31 December 2018.

Relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Group are also subject to compliance with the
Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Employees on terms
that are no less exacting than those set out in the Model Code.
To the best knowledge of the Company, there was no incident of
non-compliance of the Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions
by Employees during the six months ended 31 December 2018.

REVIEW OF INTERIM RESULTS

The Audit Committee, which comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John BBs jp
(Chairman), Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald s85 j» and Mr. Yeung Wing
Sun, Mike, has reviewed, together with the management of the
Company, the unaudited interim results of the Group for the six
months ended 31 December 2018 and considered that they were
prepared in compliance with the relevant accounting standards, the
Listing Rules and the applicable legal requirements, and that the
Company has made appropriate disclosure thereof.
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TREEE (Run2s A TFwt) RIBERELE 1K
EEEANAEREEMAEEHE20184F
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MHRAREREERERY BERRFEIE
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVFE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and Chief Executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and/or debentures (as the case may be) of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO) or which were required to be entered into the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO
or which were otherwise required to be notified to the Company and
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were set

2018/2019 INTERIM REPORT

EERBSITHRAERKRSG A
AROREEENEZRAR

2018F12A31H  EERARR®RSITH
ABRARBISEEMEEEE (TERESH
REREEOIEXVED) 2 Bk h - HERMD R,
SEEE(RTERME) P  HEREES
N HR S I EXVERE7 KR Ee D B M A M E A
NRARBBBMIT 2w RAR (BRERER
BZEEHFRBAEGROIGECMERIESEE
WBZERRKE)  REES REE KA
EINRALBRARRATFEZEREMAZ
BmEAR  HBRBRETUMELNG AR
AIRBEBBRZESRRBWT ¢

out below:
() The Company nH E2aFH
Approximate
Long/short Number of Shares/ percentage of
Name of Director position Capacity underlying shares ~ Notes shareholding
Epg BE/ KR a4 R/ RERHBE iki3 BAORRLL A
(%)
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong Long position Beneficial owner 16,726,000
RRIE e ERERA
Long position Interest held by his 243,756,343 1
HE controlled corporations
BRmEEHEERA
Long position Beneficial owner 700,000 3
30 ExBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 2,300,000 4
fFe EGAA
263,482,343 34.80
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Jacquen Long position Beneficial owner 17,748,657
HFEELL e ERfAA
Long position Beneficial owner 11,380,000 2
He EaBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 500,000 3
e ESEAA
Long position Beneficial owner 1,500,000 4
e EiAA
31,128,657 411
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Approximate

Long/short Number of Shares/ percentage of
Name of Director position Capacity underlying shares  Notes shareholding
Espg BR/ %R LL Rt/ HRRGOBE iiki3 BAORRLH
(%)
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick Long position Beneficial owner 600,000 2
BRERA e ERBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 400,000 3
e EaBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 1,500,000 4
e EaAA
2,500,000 0.33
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael Long position Beneficial owner 12,590,000
BXBEL e BERBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 400,000 3
e ERBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 1,500,000 4
e BEafiAA
14,490,000 1.91
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix Long position Beneficial owner 1,238,000
FRBLAE e EZfEA
Long position Beneficial owner 10,242,000 2
iR BERBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 500,000 3
e ExBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 1,500,000 4
e EaEAA
13,480,000 1.78
Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick Long position Beneficial owner 19,565,000
EYisES L e BERBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 400,000 3
e ExBAA
Long position Beneficial owner 1,500,000 4
e EaEAA
21,465,000 2.83
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John 885 jp Long position Beneficial owner 200,000
ERER L giEE A THL) S BEHSBEAA
Long position Beneficial owner 300,000 4
e BEaBAA
500,000 0.07
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Approximate

Long/short Number of Shares/ percentage of
Name of Director position Capacity underlying shares ~ Notes shareholding
EEps BR/ %A LL R/ ERRHBE i3 BARBRLLA
(%)
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald sss Long position Beneficial owner 308,000
FRRBE wpngs 742 e EERAA
Long position Beneficial owner 300,000 4
e BEaBAA
608,000 0.08
Mr.Yeung Wing Sun, Mike Long position Beneficial owner 200,000 4 0.03
BRERE e BEafAA
Notes: M 5E

(1)

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong was deemed to be interested in the 199,601,343
Shares held by East Majestic Group Limited, being his controlled
corporation, and was also deemed to be interested in 44,155,000
Shares held by EM Team Limited, also being his controlled
corporation.

These Shares represented the underlying Shares under the options
granted by the Company on 18 August 2015 pursuant to the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme.

These Shares represented the share award granted by the Company
on 17 July 2018 pursuant to the Share Award Scheme.

These Shares represented the underlying Shares under the options
granted by the Company on 6 November 2018 pursuant to the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.

FRIBEHERARNBIES 2 EZE
East Majestic Group Limited$¥ & 1
199,601,343 MO P B - FiR)T
BENMERARBEARIZEH ZEEEM
Team Limited§ A& #44,155,0008% f& 15
REEARER -

ZERMIEARRRN201568 818 RIE
BRAFRBEABRETERDMER
EIETHMHEBERD -

ZERMIEARARTNR2018F7 178 1R E
B dE B AT 2R H e B 19 T8 T By AE B AR

f/\ 3

ZERMIEARATN20185F11 A6 BRIE
BRARBERERESSRENER
HIETHHEBERD -
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(I Associated Corporations (within the meaning of the SFO)
Procare Medical Imaging & Laboratory Centre Limited™

BABBEREERAA

Other Information
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() HBEIE(ERRIBHFRPEMERMG)
EEBEFERILBTOERATO

Approximate

Long/short Number of  percentage of

Name of Director position Capacity shares  shareholding
Exgs BR KR 514 RHOBE BOFRLEHA
(%)

Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael Long position Beneficial owner 625 6.25

BRXBR8L

Causeway Bay MRI Centre Limited®

R BB A

R IR OARAF

Approximate

Long/short Number of  percentage of
Name of Director position Capacity shares  shareholding
Exgs BR KR 514 RHOBE BOFRLEHA
(%)
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael Long position Beneficial owner 95 7.60
BXBELE R BB A
Notes: P 5E

(1)  UMP Medical Centre Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, holds 62.5% of the entire issued share capital of Procare
Medical Imaging & Laboratory Centre Limited.

(2)  UMP Medical Centre Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, holds 20% of the entire issued share capital of Causeway
Bay MRI Centre Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors or Chief Executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO), or were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

(1) ZARARHZEWRBRARBEBHERLAE
BRARBEERBELERIELBRTOE
RAFIR 2B EITRAR62.5% °

(2) ARARNEENBRARBMAEKFRLE
RARFEMBEW N HEIRFOLBERAD
AN 2 HEFITRAM20% °

B EXPTIEEESN  R2018F128318 @ &
ERARREBITHRABRAR R K E
EFE(ERREBESFRBEBGRAIEXVE) 2 &
AR REESY BEREGRES
HFREERBIEXVEE7RESHIMANE
RARIRBEBMR = AkE (BIERSE
RIRZ L FH LS ROHE R ERE
EB 2SR R) + HARERIBIEE?
REBGAIE3SGTFE 2 B2tz s
AR HBBEETRMEME AR AR
BB ZERSOKE o
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UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes

in information required to be disclosed by Directors pursuant to
paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules
since the publication of the Company’s 2018 Annual Report are set

out below:

Name of Director Details of Changes

Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Dr. Li has been appointed as the
Donald s8s jp medical international advisor of

PA Good Doctor (stock code:
1833), a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange with
effect from 5 May 2018.

Dr. Li took office President
of the World Organisation of
Family Doctors (WONCA) since
November 2018.

Dr. Li retired as the chairman of
Bauhinia Foundation Research
Centre on 17 January 2019 and
retains as the director.

2018/2019 INTERIM REPORT

EEERNEN
B LT RAIE13.51B(1)E - EEARE L

MR B13.512)EF @) ZE(e) R(g) B T LA
T A D F120184 4 1 T8 A HI R A0 AR
EHHHIMT -

EEHR BHFER
FEREL FRERZERT LR

(REMEF AFHL) REBEBAR AR (&
RSE 1833 AF B
B2 BT ETHAR)) A9BSR
B 2B 5201845

BA5H AR -

ZE A 2018F11 A #E
BEAMRREE AL
FE o

B A A2019F1 817

BREEKHMERLE
FYEEHESE -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted two share option schemes, namely
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

(A) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme on
18 August 2015 under which the maximum number of Shares
to be issued upon full exercise of all outstanding share options
is 27,608,000, being approximately 3.65% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31 December 2018.

Details of the options granted and outstanding under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out as follows:

BABBEREERA

Other Information

HbE R

BRETE

$ﬁﬂET%4NFﬁIEﬁ%Hx$E§+$U

=N/
ERNEREAEREAAFAEERERE

+%U

(A)

BRAAHRBEAERESTE

$’ AIEF2015F8A18H M E XA
FERBREETE - RATA MARITHE
BREERHRITER EBE T A%
2R E R FBRA27,608,0000% ¢ BNAR
NAR2018F12A31BE BTl AL
3.65% °

RERAFREERBERET SR TR
RARITENBEEFBHIIDT

Number of Shares issuable under the share options

BREATATRIRAEE

) ) Granted  Exercised  Cancelled/ Asat 31
Exercise price  Exercise Asat 1 ]ulz durjn§ durmﬁ Lapsed durlng December
Grantee Position Date of grant per Share period 201 the perio the perio the gqerlo 2018
N - 20165 . 0185
ARA Bl EHAH RTEE 68 7A1B BAERE  HRETE  HE/AR 128318
(dd/mm/y E (HKS)  (dd/mmiy #\ (Note)
WE & Bk (i)
Directors
E
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Managing Director and 18/08/2015 12228  18/08/2016-26/11/2022 1,138,000 - - - 1,138,000
N Iac%uen Executive Diire/c_tgr 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 10,242,000 - - - 10,242,000
FRERT EzBUARYNES
Mr, Tsan: gOn Yip, Patrick Executive Director 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 60,000 - - - 60,000
e it anEs 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 540,000 - = = 540,000
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael Exgggtive Director 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 60,000 - 60,000 - -
EXERE nEE 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 540,000 = 540,000 = =
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix Executive Director 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 10,242,000 10,242,000
FFRBEE f1
Dr, Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick  Executive Director 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 200,000 - 200,000 - -
ShERE Hi78 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 1,800,000 - 1,800,000 = =
SJub%totalz 24,822,000 2,600,000 22,222,000
/ \E N
Employees
]
I/Ea oregate - 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 3,186,000 - - - 3,186,000
an
SJub*-total: 3,186,000 - - - 3,186,000
IN\ET
Other gliiigble rantees )
REERARA
In ﬂggregate - 18/08/2015 12228 18/08/2016-26/11/2022 220,000 - - - 220,000
AK 18/08/2017-26/11/2022 1,980,000 - - - 1,980,000
Sul}-total: 2,200,000 - 2,200,000
NG
Total: 30,208,000 2,600,000 27,608,000

Al

Note: The weighted average closing prices of the Shares immediately
before the dates on which the share options were exercised by
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael and Dr. Lee Pak Cheung, Patrick were
HK$1.76 and HK$1.78 respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, 27,608,000 options remained
outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Wik BEEREEANBRREAERTHTE
171,28 A H9 A% 40 hn#E S 35 Wi i 5 B
B1.7687T X1.788 7T °

R2018F12A31H » B X A %Al

FE St BI1H T H27,608,00017 B HE g

mARITIE o

—
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(B) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (B) BXAMRELBRESE
The Company adopted the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme on AABIR2015F 11 A2BEHEME AR
2 November 2015 under which the maximum number of Share FEERERESTE - RABRARITE
to be issued upon full exercise of all outstanding share option BREERBITEEIETAI#T 2 RH
is 13,270,000 Shares, being approximately 1.75% of the issue #HE EMRA13,270,0000 8% - BIAR
share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2018. APR2018F12A31AE EITIRAZL
1.75% °
Details of the options granted and outstanding under the BRAAHEERBRESEETERE
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out as follows: M ARITEZEREFBEIHIOT
Cancelled/
Lapsed Asat
Asat Granted Exercised during 31 December
Exercise price 1 July 2018 during during the period 2018
Crantee Position Date of grant per Share  Exercise period 20185 the period the period BRE 2018
REA Bl RERE SROEE FH TRIR BRERE  HREAE BE/&N 128310
[dd/mm/y@/) (HKS) (dd/mm/yy%y) (Note 1) (Note 2)
(R/B/%) (1) (R/R/%) (K1) (Hisk2)
Directors
g2
Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong Chairman, Chief 30/06/2016 1.27 30062018 1,213,000 - 1,213,000 - -
REIBE Executive Officer and - 29/06/2021
Executive Director
IR-THEHE 00112018 206300062019 - 2300000 = - 2,300,000
$1ES - 05/11/203
Ms. Kwok Cheuk Kwan, Managing Director and 06/11/2018 2.06 30/06/2019 = 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
Jacquen _Executive Director - 05/11/2023
PEELT EEOMERUNEE
Mr. Tsang On Yip, Patrick ~ Executive Director ~ 06/11/2018 206 30/06/2019 - 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
Syl #1135 -05/112023
Dr. Sun Man Kin, Michael ~ Executive Director — 06/11/2018 2,06 30/06/2019 - 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
e L WiTEs - 05/11/2023
Mr. Lee Kar Chung, Felix Executive Director — 06/11/2018 206 30/06/2019 - 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
SRBLE HTES - 05/11/2023
Dr. Lge Pak Cheung, Patrick Bxecutive Director  06/11/2018 2,06 30/06/2019 - 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
FiERE #1ES -05/112023
Mr. Lee Luen Wai, John 885 /P~ Independent 06/11/2018 2,06 30/06/2019 - 300,000 - - 300,000
TBERL (5zaes 1781) Nonexecutive -05/112023
Director_
Bukings
Dr. Li Kwok Tung, Donald Independent 06/11/2018 206 30/06/2019 - 300,000 - - 300,000
Y Non-executive -05/11/2023
PERBE weser «7#2) Direcor
Burifigs
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Cancelled/
Lapsed Asat
As at Granted Exercised during 31 December
Exercise price 1 July 2018 during during the period 2018
Grantee Position Date of grant per_Share Exeruse period 20165 the period the period #NE 20165
ARA Bl RtEH BRARE 7RIR BRCRE  BRBAR /AN 128318
(dd/mm/y é (HKS) dd/mm/y ) (Note 1) (Note 2)
WE ) (58 W) )
Mr. Yeung Wing Sun, Mike  Independent 06/112018 2,06 30/06/2019 - 200,000 - - 200,000
FRALE Non-executive -05/1112023
Director
BUFHTES
Sub-total 1203000 10600000 1,213,000 = 10,600,000
it
Employees
]
In aggregate - 2300312017 2.06 30/06/2017 340,000 - - - 340,000
aif - 29/06/2022
- 2300312017 2,06 30/06/2018 330,000 - - - 330,000
- 29/06/2022
- 23/03/2017 2,06 30/06/2019 330,000 - - 330,000 -
- 29/06/2022
06/1112018 206 30/06/2019 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
- 051172023
Sub-total 1,000,000 1,000,000 - 330,000 1,670,000
it
Other eligible rantee
R R ERR
In aggregate - 06/1112018 2,06 30/6/2019 - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
aif - 05/11/2003
ToEaI 2,213,000 12,600,000 1,213,000 330,000 13,270,000
Eh
Note: B3
1. The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which 1.  EEBEERHZ AATOROETES SR
the share options were granted was HK1.75 per Share. 1.758 7T ©
2. The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before 2. SRR R RIT B AETTE 2 B AT B N
the date on which the share options were exercised by Dr. Sun Yiu E T ERT.76/87T °

Kwong was HK$1.76.

The estimate fair value of the share options granted during & ZE2018%12A31H IF/N AR 2 B
the six months ended 31 December 2018 was approximately — BIfEET 2/ E1EA) 49,164,000/ 7T ° B ALHE
HK$9,164,000. The estimated fair value of the share options Zfhst R (EETIIA WEIj]?E &7 FR A | HR4E
granted was measured using Black-Scholes option pricing E{E’:‘L&Tﬁ':@: mEBHBREL AR BER
model with the fair value per share option of HK$0.73, taking  0.73/&7T - & i B 5T K& 4% HH #8 IR #E &9 15 5k K2
into account the terms and conditions upon which the options {5+ °

were granted.

The fair values calculated are inherently subjective and ER{ELERKZFAMETARAXAIR S - P ‘|'*t
uncertain due to the assumptions made and the limitations E’U’&/‘EE@%%E%HTHT%EE@ o BB AR A
of the model used. The value of a share option varies with ﬁﬂﬁﬁfé%%?Iéﬁfﬁj ARz BB E o P

different variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any #%f
change in variables so adopted may materially affect the FA{BfEE
estimation of the fair value of a share option.

595 2 (E 7 5 B 7 SRR 2 fi5 3t 2
EREALE -

As at 31 December 2018, 13,270,000 options granted under 2018512 A31H » RIFEFRXARMEESRKE
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme remained outstanding  FX#E &t 1% H #913,270,00017 88 A4 1 K &
and 1,213,000 options under the Post-IPO Share Option f7ff - 1,213, 00017 RIS HE B R &L 220184
Scheme have been exercised during the six months ended 31 12 531 BlEABAREE RABEEEER
December 2018. REGTEIEITIE ©
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company has adopted the Share Award Scheme on 30 June
2016 to recognise the contributions of and provide incentives for
the key management personnel including Directors and senior
management, employed experts and employees of the Group.
Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the Board,
pursuant to the trust deed, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a term of 10 years commencing on the adoption
date. The maximum number of Shares which may be awarded to
a selected participant under the Share Award Scheme shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company in each year.
The Board shall not make any further award of the awarded Shares
which will result in the nominal value of the Shares awarded by the
Board under the Share Award Scheme exceeding 2% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.

Details of the share award granted and outstanding under the Share
Award Scheme are set out as follows:

2018/2019 INTERIM REPORT

f% 17 22 B 51 &l
KABER201656A30H A MK D EE) =T
B EREMNEBHFEEEAE (BEESR
BRERE ASBZEERKEEER) ATE
B - XESE G A ReE T MTIIRATREAT
R RIKETEE RO EETEREMNE
B s+ FHME A B R A o RIER 5 R
SEARTEELEENROEE ERTE
BBARNBSELEITRAMN % EEST
BRECNSERESSRIEZR D ERHT S
R BIBAR BT BHITIRA2%2 5 E
B #E— S RENIRD -

Pefn RENEHEI TR N2 & R AR 2 B
BEFBEINMT

Cancelled/
Granted during Vested during lapsed during As at

Name Exercise period  As at 1 July 2018 the period the period the period 31 December 2018
4 &S W201857718 B BRBE  AREHE/AX  R2018F128318
Directors 30/06/2019-30/06/2021 - 2,900,000 - - 2,900,000
g%
Other eligible grantee(s)  30/06/2019-30/06/2021 - 400,000 - - 400,000
EtAERAEZA

30/06/2019-30/06/2020 - 1,305,000 - - 1,305,000

30/06/2020-30/06/2021 - 1,305,000 - - 1,305,000
Total - 5,910,000 - - 5,910,000
£t
Notes: Mt & -
1. The date of grant was on 17 July 2018. 1. HXHHEHR/2018F7817H
2. The exercise price per awarded share is HK$1.5. 2. BREBROZIITEERISET-

Certain Shares have been purchased and 5,910,000 shares have
been granted under the Share Award Scheme during the period
and none of shares have been vested during the period up to 31
December 2018.

HANERERMEBAZEES TRMOM
5,910,000 M EELFL - REARERE
2018F 12 A3 1B ERNDACDHE -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018,

so far as was known to the Directors

of the Company, the following persons/entities (other than the

Directors or Chief Executive of the Company) had, or were deemed

to have, interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying

shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the

Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section

336 of the SFO:

Other Information

HibE R

FTERRRADARG RAERK

BABBEREERA

DHER R KRR

201812 H31H

CHEARBEEZRA L
TAT /" BR(ZEEIARAERTERABR
SN RARB Z BB R HEE - S
ﬁﬁ%ﬁuT%‘% (BT ARIEE H K H
EIEPIEXVELSE2 M3 D S BRA AT &

i&%ﬁﬁ*“ﬁﬁ?ﬁ&ﬁ HRERAR

HFREEIRPIEI6GEFE S RAMA

Approximate

A B IR IE &

Name of substantial Long/short Number of Shares/ percentage of
shareholder position Capacity underlying shares  Notes shareholding
FERRES #R/ %R 54 Kt/ HERHEE M BOBRLA
(%)
East Majestic Group Limited Long position Beneficial owner 199,601,343 1 26.36
e EGBAA
EM Team Limited Long position Beneficial owner 44,155,000 1 5.83
e EfBAA
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings I1) Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 2 14.58
Limited e controlled corporations
EmmERHEERE
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 2 14.58
Limited A controlled corporations
EmmERHEERE
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 2 14.58
Sy} controlled corporations
EmmERHEERE
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 2 14.58
BRE(ER)BERLA A controlled corporations
BB ETHEERE
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited Long position Interest held by its 110,411,000 2 14.58
AAREEERA A controlled corporation
BEmEEIEERE
Healthcare Ventures Long position Beneficial owner 110,411,000 2 14.58
HR EGBEAA
China Resources National Corporation  Long position Interest held by its 97,311,000 3 12.85
hEEHADA e controlled corporations
R ERHEERSE
CR Medical Long position Interest held by its 97,311,000 3 12.85
ERRE e controlled corporations

EamERHZERA

33



34

UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Other Information

HibE ¥

Notes:

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong was deemed to be interested in the 199,601,343 Shares
held by East Majestic Group Limited, being his controlled corporation, and
was also deemed to be interested in the 44,155,000 Shares held by EM
Team Limited, also being his controlled corporation. Dr. Sun’s interests in
Shares are disclosed in this interim report in the section headed “Directors’
and Chief Executive interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures”.

Healthcare Ventures was wholly owned by Chow Tai Fook Enterprises
Limited (“CTFE”), which was wholly owned by Chow Tai Fook (Holding)
Limited (“CTFH”). So far as the Company is aware, CTFH was held as
to 81.03% by Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited (“CTFC”), which was in
turn held as to 48.98% by Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited
(“CYTF”) and as to 46.65% by Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited
(“CYTFII”). By virtue of the SFO, CTFE, CTFH, CTFC, CYTF and CYTFIl were
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of Shares in which Healthcare
Ventures was interested.

Pinyu Limited was the beneficial owner of the Shares. Pinyu Limited was
wholly owned by Unison Champ Limited, which was wholly owned by CR
Medical. CR Medical was held as to 35.7% by CRH (Phoenix Healthcare)
Limited and as to 0.82% by Commotra Company Limited. CRH (Phoenix
Healthcare) Limited was wholly owned by China Resources Healthcare
Group Limited, which was wholly owned by CRH (Healthcare) Limited.
Both CRH (Healthcare) Limited and Commotra Company Limited were
wholly owned by China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, which
was wholly owned by CRC Bluesky Limited. CRC Bluesky Limited was
wholly owned by China Resources Co., Limited, which was wholly owned
by China Resources National Corporation. By virtue of the SFO, Unison
Champ Limited, CR Medical, CRH (Phoenix Healthcare) Limited, China
Resources Healthcare Group Limited, CRH (Healthcare) Limited, China
Resources Co., Limited, China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, CRC
Bluesky Limited and China Resources National Corporation were deemed
to be interested in the same parcel of Shares in which Pinyu Limited was
interested.
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According to disclosure of interest filings available on the Stock
Exchange website, Snow Lake China Master Fund, Ltd. ("SLCMF”)
and Snow Lake China Master Long Fund, Ltd. (“SLCMLF")
beneficially owned 100,000,000 and 20,640,000 Shares
respectively. Snow Lake Capital Limited (“SLCL”) and Snow Lake
Capital (HK) Limited (“SLCHKL”), which were wholly controlled
by Mr. Ma Sean, were the investment manager to both SLCMF
and SLCMLF respectively. Accordingly, Mr. Ma Sean, SLCL and
SLCHKL were deemed to be interested in aggregate holding of
120,640,000 Shares owned by SLCMF and SLCMLF pursuant to
the SFO, representing, for illustrative purpose, 15.93% of the total
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2018. Out
of these 120,640,000 Shares, 86,984,000 Shares (representing, for
illustrative purpose, 11.48% of the total issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2018) are interests in cash-settled
equity derivatives.

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the
Directors have not been notified by any person (other than the
Directors or Chief Executive of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO.

INTERIM DIVIDEND
The Board declared an interim dividend of HK0.65 cent (the

corresponding period in 2017: HK0.55 cent) per Share for the six
months ended 31 December 2018.

The interim dividend will be payable to the shareholders of the
Company whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Monday, 18 March 2019. It is expected that the interim
dividend will be paid on or about Wednesday, 10 April 2019.

BABBEREERA

Other Information
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

Book close dates : Thursday, 14 March 2019 to
(both days inclusive) Monday, 18 March 2019
Latest time to lodge transfer : 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday,
with share registrar 13 March 2019
Address of share registrar : Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE

COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES
During the six months ended 31 December 2018, neither the

Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF THE PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
to the best knowledge, information and belief of the Directors, the
Directors confirm that the Company had maintained a sufficient
public float as required under the Listing Rules during the six months
ended 31 December 2018.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Sun Yiu Kwong

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 27 February 2019
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit or [_pss
E‘%EHHV_\AE %E

Six months ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12831H1ENEA

Six months ended 31 December

HBZE12A3181LA@EAR

2018 2017
20185 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
[i=s FERT FET
(Unaudited and
(Unaudited) restated)
(REEZ
(REER) RAEE)
REVENUE A 5 261,701 218,642
Other income and gains HoAf WA B W a5 5 13,612 5,929
Professional services expenses EX¥RKER (107,078) (86,263)
Employee benefit expense BTEAMAX (67,343) (57,919)
Property rental and related expenses MER S KRB (24,893) (20,735)
Cost of inventories consumed BEREFEKE (13,001) (11,151)
Depreciation and amortisation P R (9,863) (9,978)
Other expenses, net Hih% B 558 (62,173) (15,682)
Share of profits and losses of: DEAE K EE
Joint ventures SEAE 128 (19)
Associates R l/N]| 1,175 1,348
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BB ATRE(EB) 6 (7,735) 24,172
Income tax expense FiSHE R 7 (6,819) (6,812)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD HraRE (BE8) (14,554) 17,360
Attributable to: A& T MG
Owners of the Company ARBEARA (16,501) 17,683
Non-controlling interests IR 1,947 (323)
(14,554) 17,360
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE APNFEEER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BFEAEWL
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BRERN(BE)
COMPANY 9
Basic YN HK(2.208) centsi#Efll HK2.386 cents/ Ll
Diluted ] HK(2.208) centsi&fli  HK2.324 cents/# Ll
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SRS REBAR

Six months ended 31 December 2018
HZ=2018F12831H1ENEA

Six months ended 31 December

HZ=1283181LE~@EA

2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
(Unaudited and
(Unaudited) restated)
(CRE&EZ
(RBER) &=
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD MR (EE) (14,554) 17,360
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) HthZEW A~ (EE)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) RERBEARENR DA
that may be reclassified to profit EEBHEMERAS
or loss in subsequent periods: (E18) -
Exchange differences on translation FrEBINEEES ZHE
of foreign operations (1,012) 984
Share of other comprehensive loss of an Sh — & 2R
associate Hih 2 HEE (76) =
Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) DA E AR Ht2E
of joint ventures WA (EE) (46) 40
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) HiRHEME2EKR A (FE) -
FOR THE PERIOD, NET OF TAX R B A (1,134) 1,024
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) HiRZ2mEW A (EiE)
FOR THE PERIOD B (15,688) 18,384
Attributable to: AT & 75 FE1h
Owners of the Company KAREE A (17,635) 18,707
Non-controlling interests FEFERR B 1,947 (323)
(15,688) 18,384
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

HL R

31

December 2018
2018%F12HA31H

31 December 30 June
2018 2018
20184 20184
12A31H 6H30H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5T FTERT FHET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (EZ)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB MR 10 101,302 103,809
Goodwill EES 11 106,800 62,637
Other intangible asset H i & E 56 111
Investments in joint ventures REERANRE 1,277 1,196
Investments in associates REE QAR E 6,584 5,485
Held-to-maturity investments RHAEZIHPRE 12 = 58,570
Financial assets at amortised cost REBHEK AT ENEREE 12 54,372 -
Available-for-sale investments AIEHERE 13 - 9,848
Investments at fair value through other R QA EBEFT AEMEME
comprehensive income WARIEE 13 16,715 -
Deferred tax assets BERIBEE 1,006 1,016
Deposits RiE & 41,709 15,696
Total non-current assets FnBEELTE 329,821 258,368
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 9,534 8,244
Trade receivables H 5 WA 14 83,207 78,800
Prepayments, other receivables T FRIR - H i B WKIR
and other assets R E A& E 17,863 12,262
Financial assets at fair value EAREBETABRZHN
through profit or loss EREE 2,288 2,427
Held-to-maturity investments REZIERE 12 = 10,927
Financial assets at amortised cost BEEK AT ENESREE 12 12,388 -
Due from associates JE Wt & A R RIB 5,838 5,640
Due from related companies JE UK A B A R SRIE 2,382 2,735
Due from a joint venture K —H&aE&RRRIEA - 415
Tax recoverable A] Y 3] 5 18 17 977
Pledged deposits ERER 1,352 1,352
Cash and cash equivalents ReMBREFEY 283,511 293,970
418,380 417,749
Assets of a disposed group classified DERFIELHEN —@E
as held for sale HESBEMNEE - 56,671
Total current assets m BB E AR 418,380 474,420
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31 December 30 June
2018 2018
20184 20184
12A31H 6H30H
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FExT FHET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZX) (&%)
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade payables EE ) AN 15 44,081 39,152
Other payables, accruals Hib e I8 - FEET
and deferred income BRAME Uﬁz}\ 44,210 48,486
Due to associates JFE {~t B 2 N B FUE 67 207
Due to related companies JE < B BSE R R BUIE 857 452
Due to a joint venture J?EH—F'E'ﬁ/El\éf AIIA 201 -
Tax payable JE& 5t B 18 7,183 9,523
96,599 97,820
Liabilities directly associated with the HAOEARIERENEE
assets classifies as held for sale BEEEHENBRE - 43
Total current liabilities mEAEE 96,599 97,863
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEETFHE 321,781 376,557
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HMEERRBAR
LIABILITIES 651,602 634,925
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEME
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHIEEE 1,397 1,606
Provision B 2,189 2,222
Total non-current liabilities ERBBERT 3,586 3,828
Net assets BEFHE 648,016 631,097
EQUITY fEw
Equity attributable to owners of RAREREARMGLES
the Company
Issued capital B BITIRA 16 757 753
Reserves 7 1 581,358 566,383
582,115 567,136
Non-controlling interests FE 12 IR A 2 65,901 63,961
Total equity i 648,016 631,097
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BLESSY 343 -3k

Six months ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F12831H1ENEA

Attributable to owners of the Company

KLAREARR
Available-
Shares held for-sale
for the Share-  investment
Share  Capital share based ~ revaluation/ Exchange Non-
Issued ~ premium  contribution award  payment  fair value legal  fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
apital - account  reserve  scheme  reserve  reserve  reserve reserve profit Total ~ inerests equity
HRE MR L
kBiY  RER  HERE
BEf kit BE AN ARb ER/24 EXRE g $ER Bi
Bx  EER i kh B EERE fRak B A &t 3 3
Notes — HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
iFd Tér  TEn  TEm  TEn TR TR TEr  TEn  TEn TR TEn  TEn
At1 July 2017 (audited) W017E7R18 (85H) 737 355,560 36,131 (5,843) 15,104 418 035 (1072) 130,949 532619 62,995 595,614
Profit forthe period SmilR - - - - - - - - 1768 63 17360
Other comprehensive income. ~~ EEAEH2ERA
for the period:
Exchange diferences on FEENZHN
translation of foreign operations ~ E#Z8 - - - - - - - 964 - 964 - 964
Share of other comprehensive ~ SEAERT
income of joint ventures 2 2ERA - - - - - - - 4 - 4 - 40
Total comprehensive income ~~ ER2EHABE
for the period - - - - - - - 1,04 17,683 18,707 (323) 18,384
Equiy-etiled share option NRRREERETS
arangements - - - - 1,061 - - - - 1,061 - 1,061
Final 2017 dividend WTRERE 8 - - - - - - - - (16464 (lbdod - (16464
Issue of shares pon exercise ﬂ%ﬁi%%ﬁ@éﬂ%
of share options Kkt 16 W7 = = (5,264) S S S = 19,029 = 19,029
Purchase of shares for the share J[Hx U%JJ RELEL
award scheme o = - (1,154) = o o o - (1,154) - (1,154)
Transfer o legal reserve Eﬁ* S /f THE = = = = = = 214 = (214 = = =
31 December 2017 IV
(unaudited) (%EZH) 753 3987 3,151 (6,997 10901 418* 849* (48] 131,954 553,798 02,672 616470
A1 oy 2018 audited) R016%75 18 (54 BT WM (075) 11474 205 846 69 W74 0% 6391 631,097
Loss for the period BRER - - - - - - - - (16501 (16,501) 1947 (14,554)
Other comprehensive loss SMEHEEER:
for the period:
Exchange diferences on FERNRBHELER
translation of foreign aperations = = - = = = = (1,012 = (1,012 = (1,012
Share of other comprehensive A5 -FRELT
loss of an associate 2t EEE%; > = = = = = . (76) > (76) = (76)
Share of other comprehensive  SEAEATEM2EEE
loss of joint ventures = = = = = = = (46) = (46) = (46)
Total comprehensive loss Rk
for the period - - - - - - - (1134 (16501) (17,635 1947 (15,688)
Equity-setled arangements ~ JERBE T - - - - 48 - - - - BENTTEE
Final 2018 dividend 201 axﬁﬂﬁx : § - - - - - - - - (758 (1758) - (1758
Issve of shares upon exerciie. ~— EREEAEEERG
of share options 16(b) 4 6,205 - - (1,489) - - - - 4720 - 4720
Purchase of shares for the share k(3 Bt BEEHRE
award scheme - - - (3,352) - - - - - (3,352) - (3,352)
Acquiston of non-controlling B RER
inferests - - - - - - - - = - Ul U]
Transfr o legal reserve BEnTRE - - - - - = 395 = (395) 5 = -
31 December 2018 R0185128318
(unauded) (fzf) BT M6666t WA (4104¢  SBEIET W05t L2 (9 13BN 65901 648016
2 These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * ZERBRERNEAEEWHRRAIRALZ
HK$581,358,000 (30 June 2018: HK$566,383,000) in the condensed 7 & f# #581,358,0008 7T (201856 A30F :

consolidated statement of financial position. 566,383,000/ 7T) ©

—
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FHRGERERER

Six months ended 31 December 2018
HZ=2018F12831H1ENEA

Six months ended 31 December

HZ=12A3181E~EA

2018 2017
20185 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 THER FHET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZ)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REZBNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax BB RIAE,(E8) (7,735) 24,172
Total non-cash adjustments R FHBEE 45,878 7,254
Total working capital adjustments HEETARER (14,504) (16,737)
Cash generated from operations REXBELNRE 23,639 14,689
Interest received 2 WA 233 692
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREBEEMSH (5,876) (7,821)
Overseas taxes paid EAEINIE (2,482) (1,697)
Net cash flows from operating RETHEENRSE
activities REFH 15,514 5,863
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZBNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of subsidiaries/a business WEMB AR %% 17 (36,937) (2,000)
Purchases of items of property, BEYWE BELKEEER
plant and equipment (5,499) (57,094)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries & M B A BRI TS 3k T 65,115 -
Proceeds from disposal of HERFE Jﬁﬁ?xéfﬁﬁ?%?f(
held-to-maturity investments - 15,005
Purchases of held-to-maturity investments BB E#HHE 22| HIEE - (6,365)
Purchase of financial assets at amortised BERBHEKAAENSRE
cost 23 (12,290) -
Proceeds from redemption of financial ERIREEK AT ENSEE
assets at amortised cost B PSSR 14,845 -
Purchases of debt investments at fair value BERAAEBEFAZMEE
through other comprehensive income WARBERKIRE (121,522) -
Proceeds from disposal of debt investments H&Z AL EEFAHMBEE
at fair value through other WA R ERIRE B ATEHIA
comprehensive income 114,630 —
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from Bl EERRSERD
joint ventures (35 hn) 415 (1,821)
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EBHHZEERERER

Six months ended 31 December 2018
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Six months ended 31 December

BZ=1283181E~1EA

2018 2017
20185 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B = FTHERT FHET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEX) (REEZ)
Deposit paid for purchase of items of BEEWME WMENLREBEE
property, plant and equipment YA IR EE (1,320) (10,362)
Deposit paid for acquisition of a subsidiary WiE—RMK B AN HiRE (30,000) -
Other investing activities H At 12 & & 2,923 1,581
Net cash used in investing activities RETBHERANESFEHE (9,640) (61,056)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METBHNREAE
ACTIVITIES
Proceed from issue of shares upon %Hﬁ%ﬁﬁ@-ﬁ 21T (D
exercise of share option Fr {331 16 4,720 19,029
Purchase of shares for the share award A 1 i%@] SEIBEM RN
scheme (3,352) (1,154)
Dividend paid B E 8 (17,587) (16,464)
Net cash flows from/(used in) BMETHELE(FH) W
financing activities REREFH (16,219) 1,411
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERRESEENRDFHE
EQUIVALENTS (10,345) (53,782)
Effect of foreign exchange rate SMNEFE R Z8) 2 & (FF)
changes, net (114) 1,204
Cash and cash equivalents at BB RRESEEY
beginning of period 293,970 434,073
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HRESRESEEY
AT END OF PERIOD 283,511 381,495
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERBLEEUERDT
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B RIRITER 283,511 381,495
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in AR E R S RERAIAZ
the condensed consolidated statement HeERRESEEY
of cash flows 283,511 381,495
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited is a limited liability

company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The principal
place of business of the Company is located at Room 1404-
1408, 14/F., Wing On House, 71 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong.

During the period, the Group was principally engaged in the
provision of healthcare services which include:

. corporate healthcare solution services;

. medical and dental services;

J medical imaging and laboratory services;
J other auxiliary medical services; and

J healthcare management services.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 27 November 2015 (the
“Listing”).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the six months ended 31 December 2018 have
been prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Accounting
Standard (“HKAS”) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income which have been measured at
fair value. The unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise

indicated.

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements do
not include all the information and disclosures required in the
annual financial statements, and should be read in conjunction
with the Group’s annual consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 30 June 2018.

1.
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3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the

unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of

the Group for the six months ended 31 December 2018

are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the

Group’s annual consolidated financial statements for the year

ended 30 June 2018, except for the adoption of the following

new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

(“HKFRSs”), which are effective for the Group’s annual period

beginning on 1 July 2018.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 40

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Annual Improvements to
2014-2016 Cycle

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
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UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

2018/2019 INTERIM REPORT

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

B4R & P I B IS SRR B =

3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Other than as explained below regarding the impacts of
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, the adoption of the above new and
revised standards has had no significant financial effect on the
unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the six months ended 31 December 2018.

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) replaces HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
(“HKAS 39”) for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, bringing together all three aspects of the accounting
for financial instruments: classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting.

With the exception of hedge accounting, which the Group
has applied prospectively, the Group would recognise
any transition adjustments against the applicable opening
balances in equity at 1 July 2018. Therefore, the comparative
information was not restated and continues to be reported
under HKAS 39.

(a) Classification and measurement
To determine the classification and measurement
category, HKFRS 9 requires all financial assets, except
equity instruments and derivatives, to be assessed based
on a combination of the entity’s business model for
managing the assets and the instruments’ contractual cash
flow characteristics.

The HKAS 39 measurement categories of financial assets,
including financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, available-for-sale financial
investments and held-to-maturity investments have been
replaced by:

- Debt instruments at amortised cost;
—  Debt instruments at fair value through other

comprehensive income, with gains or losses

recycled to profit or loss on derecognition;
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements
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3.1 Bt BEREBEEE S &)

ERUEHRELERFEIR (B)
(@ DERFEE)

3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)
HKFRS 9 (Continued)
(@) Classification and measurement (Continued)

- Equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, with no recycling of gains
or losses to profit or loss on derecognition; and

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The accounting for the Group’s financial liabilities
remains largely the same as it was under HKAS 39.
Similar to the requirements of HKAS 39, HKFRS 9
requires contingent consideration liabilities to be treated
as financial instruments measured at fair value, with the
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

As of 1 July 2018, the category of loans and receivables
under HKAS 39, including cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables and amounts
due from associates, related companies and a joint
venture, were transferred to debt instruments at amortised
cost under HKFRS 9.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in other comprehensive income, there is
no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments continue
to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.
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UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

2018/2019 INTERIM REPORT

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

AR S B R R M

3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(@)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

3.1 Bt BEREEES &)

ERUBHREERFEIR (F)
@ DERFEGE)

The following information sets out the impacts of
adopting HKFRS 9 on the statement of financial position:

A reconciliation between the carrying amounts under
HKAS 39 and the balances reported under HKFRS 9 as at
1 July 2018 is as follows:

UTEREIRKEBWERE
EHFIRHMBMAROZE

REBB G EREIRMNEE
BEERIE RS SREEDFEHR
WEW2018F7A1H &8 2 B R

mF
HKAS 39 measurement HKFRS 9 measurement
BREHER ERMBHEER
F39EE ELE A
Re-
Category ~ Amount classification ECL  Amount Category
BARE
<Y £® E¥NSE BR EX <Yl
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Wi THT TRT THET  TER
Financial assets tREE
Investments at fair value BARBEA (i) N/A = 9,848 = 9,848  FvOCI
through other comprehensive Et 2 ERARNRE TER
income
Financial assets at amortised cost 2% Sk A& 249 (ii N/A - 69,497 - 69,497 AC?
TREE TEH

! FVOCI: Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

2 AC: Financial assets or financial liabilities at amortised cost
Notes:
(i) The Group has elected the option to irrevocably designate its

previous available-for-sale investments as investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income.
(i)  The Group has classified its previous held-to-maturity
investments as debt investments measured at amortised cost.

(if)
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RS 2 B F R R Y =

3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(b)

Impairment

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed the Group’s
accounting for impairments by replacing HKAS 39’s
incurred loss approach with a forward-looking expected
credit loss (“ECL”) approach. HKFRS 9 requires the Group
to record an allowance for ECLs for all loans and other
debt financial assets not held at FVTPL. ECLs are based
on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets original
effective interest rate.

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the
standard’s simplified approach and has calculated ECLs
based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic

conditions.

The Group has applied the general approach and
recorded twelve-month ECLs that are estimated based
on the possible default events on its other receivables
within the next twelve months. The Group considers
that there has been a significant increase in credit risk
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due. The Group considers a financial asset in default
when contractual payments are 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider
a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

AR S B R R M

3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIESAND 3.1 €1 BERBESEE &)

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(b) Impairment (Continued)
The adoption of the ECL requirements of HKFRS 9 did not
result in change in impairment allowances of the Group’s

debt financial assets.

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts ("HKAS 11”7), HKAS 18 Revenue (“HKAS 18”) and
related interpretations and it applies, with limited exceptions,
to all revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS
15 establishes a new five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS
15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach
for measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also
introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in
contract asset and liability account balances between periods
and key judgements and estimates.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the retrospective
method of adoption.
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

RS 2 B F R R Y =

3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial
statement line item was affected as at 1 July 2018 as a result of
the adoption of HKFRS 15:

3.1 Bt BEREBEEE S &)

ERMBEHREEAEISR (B)
TXEFIR201857 A1 BRRME ST
BHREEAEISEMESHBREZE
TEBERFE S/

Amounts prepared under

BRETIHEAMGERZ2SE
Previous Increase/
HKFRS 15 HKFRS  (decrease)
ERBHMT
WMEER MBEBHB i
E155 IREEA (R 2)
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FAT FET FET
Current liabilities: REEE:
Contract liabilities include in FTH M RRE -
other payables, accruals and FEET B A RRTEWA
deferred income NEeEBaE 16,282 = 16,282
Deferred income included in FTH e RROE -
other payables, accruals and FEEHE A RIETEKRA
deferred income A 3 JE A = 16,282 (16,282)
Net increase/(decrease) in TEAREENS
current liabilities (R A) 558 =

Set out below are the amounts by which each profit or loss
line item was affected for the six months ended 31 December
2018 and the corresponding comparative figures as a result of
the adoption of HKFRS 15. The adoption of HKFRS 15 has had
no impact on other comprehensive income or on the Group’s
operating, investing and financing cash flows. The first column
shows the amounts recorded under HKFRS 15 and the second
column shows what the amounts would have been had HKFRS
15 not been adopted:

LA 851 SN B B B 7 5 2E R 615
SR ¥ A =2018% 12 A31H L/~ @ A
EEmcBTHEEEAYENSERE
ELLERET - MWD BT B MEELSE
155 2 MR AR EBALE -
RENBERERETEFE - F—1R
BTRIRIBEE AV B REELF155% ALK
WEeHE  FIWEBETMEWERADE
B ISR 5 B E 1550 ABRM &5 ¢
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

AR S B R R M

3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIESAND 3.1 €1 BERBESEE &)

DISCLOSURES (Continued)
HKFRS 15 (Continued)
Consolidated statement of profit or loss for the six months

ended 31 December 2018:

ERAMBEHRELERE155 (&)
HZE2018F12A31B It A ANEGZAE
BmE

Amounts prepared under

BREUTERFERHNEE
Previous
HKFRS 15 HKFRS Decrease
HEED RBEBEHK
E1558 wE A W
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FAET FAET FET
Revenue U A (b) 261,701 323,666 (61,965)
Professional services expenses EERBEHX (b) 107,078 169,043 (61,965)
Net increase/(decrease) By O )
in profit or loss F R =

The nature of the adjustments as at 1 July 2018 and the reasons
for the significant changes in the statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2018 and the statement of profit or loss for
the six months period ended 31 December 2018 are described

below:

(@) Advances received from customers

The Group generally receives advances from its corporate
customers of the Group’s corporate healthcare solution
services under the fixed-fee service contracts. Prior
to the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group recognised
consideration received from customers in advance
as deferred income. Under HKFRS 15, the amount is
classified as contract liabilities which is included in
other payables and accruals. Therefore, upon adoption of
HKFRS 15, the Group reclassified HK$16,282,000 from
deferred income to contract liabilities as at 1 July 2018 in
relation to the consideration received from customers in
advance as at 30 June 2018.

MR2018F7HA1TEMAEMEE UAER
2018F 12 A3 1AM BMRA K REZE
2018F12A31H IENE A BE/MER
RERBEEHNRERENT

(@ REFWEIMHER
AEE—MBEEEKRES U
BASECEBEREHRRAFR
RISH B HERF R - RENE S
ISR & ERIE155 0] 0 AKE
ERERESRERRFELER
A BREBERBH B RELERIFS
5% ZeBOBAAKNARBYEA
HEMERERETTER - Bt
RER N B 78 B 15 & 22 RI B 155%
% ANEEEEE2018F6H30H
ZTEWEFREBI6,282,0007%
TCE IR E Y A E 3T 0 $5 R 7R2018
F7ABZAHEE-
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3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)
HKFRS 15 (Continued)

(b)

Principal versus agent considerations in revenue
recognition

The Group’s corporate healthcare solution services to
contract customers segments provides healthcare solution
to corporate customers by entering into (i) fixed-fee
service contract (i.e. capitation plan contract and annual
retainer contract) and (ii) fee-for-service contract. As
a result of the shift from the risk-and-reward approach
under previous HKAS 18 to transfer-of-control approach
under HKFRS 15, the Group has reassessed whether
the Group is acting as an agent or a principal for its
corporate healthcare solution services. Under HKAS
18, the Group is a principal in the Group’s corporate
healthcare solution services because the Group has
exposure to the significant risks, including credit risk, and
rewards associated with the rendering of the corporate
healthcare solution services and accordingly, reports
revenue generated therefrom on the basis of gross inflows
of economic benefits. Upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the
Group has made its principal versus agent assessment
by evaluating the nature of its promise to customers
under the transfer-of-control approach for each type
of corporate healthcare solution service contracts. It
has determined that the Group is the principal for the
corporate healthcare solution services under fixed-fee
service contract and fee-for-service contract to the
extent the healthcare services provided by the Group’s
consultants at its self-operated clinics and that the Group
is an agent for the fee-for-service contract in which the
healthcare services are provided by its affiliated doctors
at their respective affiliated clinics.

3.1 Bt BEREBEEE S &)

BERMBRELERE155 (F)
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AR S B R R M

3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)
HKFRS 15 (Continued)

(b)

Principal versus agent considerations in revenue
recognition (Continued)

The change in presentation with respect to fee for
service rendered by the Group’s affiliated doctors is
primarily because the revenue contract within the
scope of HKFRS 15 becomes identifiable and all criteria
of revenue contract is fulfilled when plan member
receives and the affiliated doctor provides the healthcare
services (i.e. promised service). Since the affiliated
doctors has control over the promised service before
the promised service transfers to the plan member,
the affiliated doctor acts as a principal and the Group
acts as an agent in the transaction. As a result of the
change in presentation, the Group has reported the
related revenue generated therefrom on the basis of net
inflows of economic benefits and restated comparative
information by decreasing both revenue and professional
services expenses in an amount of HK$62,303,000 for
the corporate healthcare solution services to contract
customers segment for the six months ended 31
December 2017. There have been no financial impact on
the Group’s profit before tax.

3.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not early applied any new and revised HKFRSs,

that have been issued but are not yet effective for the six

months ended 31 December 2018, in the unaudited condensed

consolidated financial statements. Further information about

those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the Group

is described below:

3.1 Bt BEREEES &)
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3.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS 16”), replaces HKAS 17 Leases
(“HKAS 17”), HK(FRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating
Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for
lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term leases. At
the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise
a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability)
and an asset representing the right to use the underlying
asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The
right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses unless
the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in HKAS 40 Investment Property, or relates to a class
of property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation
model is applied. The lease liability is subsequently increased
to reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced for
the lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will
also be required to remeasure the lease liability upon the
occurrence of certain events, such as change in the lease term
and change in future lease payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine those payments. Lessees
will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged
from the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to
classify all leases using the same classification principle as in
HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases and finance
leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to make more
extensive disclosures than under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose
to apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a
modified retrospective approach. The Group will adopt HKFRS
16 from 1 July 2019. The Group plans to adopt the transitional
provisions in HKFRS 16 to recognise the cumulative effect
of initial adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained profits at 1 July 2019 and will not restate the
comparatives. In addition, the Group plans to apply the new
requirements to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and measure the lease liability at
the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of
initial application. The right-of-use asset will be measured at
the amount of the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the lease
recognised in the statement of financial position immediately
before the date of initial application. At 31 December
2018, the Group had future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in aggregate of approximately
HK$81,718,000.

3.2 CHEMEEARERNE BT

] E 2R (@)

EAVBEREELF16RBEE (BB
BRELERE 165 ) MR BB QTR
F17HRHE ([BALFTERE17%])
B8 (BB KREREZEEG) -7
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AZ - ZERHFIER 578 2K
WEHEENMRE  WESREBRARKZ
HHERREEREGRE -ZENBER
FTHEBEAMBHEERR®RE —KEEBE
EHERCHEE REEMRGBBHE -
AMABERREERELNHEN R A
BEEBEEAR) MREAEREBE
ENENAEE(NEFEREEE) -
BIEEFREEENA BT ERSE
A0 EYEHIREMENTE - K
REAEHRERXNZYE - BEREHEE
B BAIEFERAEEEEZERARR
FHTEREMBEEEFE -HEGSRE
BEepkmBES G S mENERA
MER MM - A& AEED R H#ER
HEABEMNA BRI LEFRAEEEN
WERS - ABABITAEARE TEHE
EREFHEHERE  flnAREE
S F AR EEZEN RN —BER
S REBEMIIBRKREENKEE -
EEA—RBEFTEHEABENEEE
WREEBEREEENAE - FBPK
WMEEBF1FABUS BB BT EL
F17HRAEEANSHTERESR o B
AN HEE T A EE BRI 75548
R ERAUNSFAEREEETSE I
BzoBREHERMERE - 580
B EERF 165 ERAMEA RHEA
BREBESHENEI7RIELRES
WE - M ARRENZEEWERK
HoEPERS A ERAZER - AEE
1% BE2019F7 818 £EHEMNE B 15 R
EEAE 165 o AEBFEIFHME B
TR EEBFE16EABERTE BB X
RAH R B IERBER2019F7 5
1THRBREEBGERNTERE - LT
SEILERET o i - NEEF B
MR EERAREIERBE S ER
F17RMBR AHEENE L WIEF &
HEMNFOREF2HEARE  URE
AAEBRREAERBHNESEER
KOHIE - FRAEEESZHESESSE
2 WRBEEXERB BT EY
AR 2R P R R B AR & AR R A (Rl TR A Bk
T HENRERBEITHE - KR2018
F12A318 ' AEBBED I HHEL
EHEENNRREEECBENR
81,718,000/ JT ©
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has

two reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) Corporate healthcare solution services (“Corporate
Healthcare Solution Services to Contract Customers”)
segment engages in the provision of corporate healthcare
solutions to contract customers; and

(b) Clinical healthcare services (“Clinical Healthcare
Services”) segment engages in the provision of medical
and dental services, health check-up and other auxiliary

services.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of facilitating
decision-making process of resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated
based on reportable segment profit/loss, which is a
measurement of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The adjusted
profit/loss before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit/loss before tax except that interest income, other income
and gains, and share of profits and losses of joint ventures and
associates as well as head office and corporate expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.

4.

e MER
REEME - AEEENEERRRY
MEERENEE  BANTRETS

WEEDE

(@) DEBEBFRRERHERTERS (R
BHEFPRHELMREFEREHR
TERBKD DB REANTPIEM
TEBEERREERIR R

(b) KA AR 2 AR 7% (TR IR &8 B R
{2 BR 75 1) B FE 1R M B B K T BHIR
% BEREREMEHBIR

EEEBOREZEAEESKE D
B AMEEBERD R EETMA
FRRRIE - D HEEERAZ2HY
BAE AR REABBRBA
B/ BROERE - KHBRBA
FB,/ EiRREREEBRTATAE, &
B AE - EMNSUA - EAt
WARYE - MERE AR REE QR
B AR EMRER R ARRE T HAZ

5E -

DHEHENER2ERERRITH
BRE=STHENEERE -
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., REDFEBER )
(Continued)
(@) Revenue and results @ WARES
Corporate
Healthcare
Solution
Services to Clinical
Contract Healthcare
Customers Services Total
ERSES)
EFEREM
REE
RIEERER i R B
FRER® RIER &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET
Six months ended 31 B E2018F12A31H Lt
December 2018 (unaudited) NEB (RBEZ)
Segment revenue (note 5): 2EBUA (B EE5) -
External sales HMNER3H & 121,834 139,867 261,701
Intersegment sales DEEHE 705 48,079 48,784
122,539 187,946 310,485
Reconciliation: SHA
Elimination of intersegment nEEEE R
sales (48,784)
Revenue WA 261,701
Segment results D EBELE 16,058 24,175 40,233
Reconciliation: SHED -
Interest income A B WA 3,249
Other income and gains H At U A R e 10,363
Share of profits and losses of: %31 )} &Eﬂé\ :
Joint ventures EER 128
Associates RN 7 1,175
Corporate and other YNCIDSEE P S 3
unallocated expenses (62,883)
Loss before tax % F Al E5 18 (7,735)
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REDZEER @
(Continued)
(@) Revenue and results (Continued) (@ WAREE®E)
Corporate
Healthcare
Solution
Services to Clinical
Contract Healthcare
Customers Services Total
BRSNS
R
ERE
IRIE AR R &K B &
7 R RTE IR AR 75 A&
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT FHET
Six months ended B E2017%F12831H
31 December 2017 17518 A
(unaudited) (REEERK)
Segment revenue: DEUA -
External sales (restated) GNERSHE (K& EF) 107,879 110,763 218,642
Intersegment sales 7 B fEHH & 444 43,566 44,010
108,323 154,329 262,652
Reconciliation: FHE -
Elimination of 75 BB A 35 6 K 5
intersegment sales (44,010)
Revenue WA 218,642
Segment results DEEE 19,105 16,289 35,394
Reconciliation: SEEL
Interest income A B U A 2,212
Other income and gains R O E 3,717
Share of profits and losses of: 2 {f F 8 & &5 18 :
Joint ventures =N (19)
Associates /NG 1,348
Corporate and other RNA R EA R D LR X
unallocated expenses (18,480)
Profit before tax B A% AT ) B 24,172
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BRESHER
(Continued)
(b) Information about major customers by FEFEFER
Revenue from a major customer which accounted for KE—RIEEP (EREERA
10% or more of the Group’s revenue from the Corporate A& #) % P IR 1 X B R AR (AR
Healthcare Solution Services to Contract Customers RIT R ARTE 5 B A BT 10%3K BA
segment is set out below: ERER)BMKRARHIAT ¢

Six months ended 31 December
HZ1283181E~EA

2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TETT
(Unaudited and
(Unaudited) restated)
(REEZ R
(REEX) KE5)
Customer A ZFEA 23,290 20,022
5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA HtW A K &=
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WAZ AT

Six months ended 31 December

BZ12A3181EXEA

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(Unaudited and
(Unaudited) restated)
(REEZK
(REEERZ) KE5)
Revenue from contracts with customers FEFE &MU A
Provision of corporate healthcare RECEBEREMER
solution services: HRR
Medical services BERE 112,691 99,985
Dental services 7R 9,143 7,894
Provision of clinical healthcare services: 12 Fq /K 8 B (R AR 75 ¢
Medical services =R 109,209 83,619
Dental services TR AR 30,658 27,144
261,701 218,642
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA~ HittW AR s ()
(Continued)
Disaggregated revenue information RoFZBAESR
Six months ended 31 December 2018 B E2018F12A318 L <EA
Corporate
Healthcare
Solution
Services to Clinical
Contract Healthcare
Customers Services Total
BEHNER
REsE
BRERR RN &
Segments 2 R TT RRE 2R &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHExT FHBx
Type of services PR %5 3 2
Medical services BERE 112,691 109,209 221,900
Dental services TRHRTE 9,143 30,658 39,801
Total revenue from contracts with BEASAWALEEE
customers 121,834 139,867 261,701
Geographical markets 3 T 5
Hong Kong and Macau BB MBRP 120,588 116,727 237,315
PRC a2 1,246 23,140 24,386
Total revenue from contracts with BEAEAWALEEE
customers 121,834 139,867 261,701
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA Hitt AR s ()

(Continued)

An analysis of other income and gains is as follows:

HWARKHEO DT

Six months ended 31 December

BE12A318LXEA

2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEX) (RfgEZ)
Other income and gains H W A R W
Administrative support fees THRXEER 523 461
Bank interest income RIT A B WA 233 692
Interest income on held-to-maturity FAEZIMEENTERA
investments = 1,470
Interest income on available-for-sale AHEEERENNEWA
investments - 50
Interest income on financial assets at REENAFTENEREED
amortised cost B U A 1,991 -
Interest income on investments at fair value 122 # EBEFALMEE
through other comprehensive income WA B E BT BUA 1,025 =
Dividend income from financial assets at fair 122 BE AR Z
value through profit or loss TREENRSBA 66 60
Fair value gains on financial assets at fair BAREBEFABRZ
value through profit or loss eRMEENA R EEWSE - 236
Rental income HeA - 241
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & BB 2 Bl M as 8,557 =
Others Hit 1,217 2,719
13,612 5,929
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6. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 6. FRBIATFIE (EE)
The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBEBRBATRE, (BE) hHk,/
(crediting): GtA) TAIRIAERE L

Six months ended 31 December

BZ12A3181EXEA

2018 2017
2018% 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHER FHT

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEX) (RigEZ)

Equity-settled share-based payment LAREZS B E AR AR H
expense (including employees, A (BERE 5%
professional consultants and other LS EEES Y 2t
business partner) (note) (PR EE) 48,833 1,061
Fair value loss/(gains) on financial BRARBEFAERZSH
assets at fair value through profit or loss ~ BAEM AR BEERE,(WH) 140 (236)
Foreign exchange differences, net bE 3 E RRFE (83) (106)
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries & Bt 8 A Rl s (8,557) -
Loss on acquisition of minority interest of W& — B R FAMLDEHKE
a subsidiary e E R 88 -
Write-off of items of property, plant and  #i$5¥% - W= M&EEE
equipment 16 -
Note: The balance included share-based payment expenses of M EHReERRNERR RS BN EB
approximately HK$46 million in connection with the issuance of % ffZheng He Health and Medical
warrants to a business partner of the Group, Zheng He Health and Resources Limited# 1758 IR 7& 2 LA AR
Medical Resources Limited, during the period. MREBHNAFZL46BEET
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7. INCOME TAX 7.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (six months ended 31 December 2017: 16.5%) on
the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the period. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/

jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

8Bt

BEENEHENBAEESEENMER
JER A EE16.5% (B E2017412 A
3THIEANMEA  16.5%) FIF R 5T 17 5
1o HAbib = ERBAEN R IBIR AL
BEBAMERRAEAEREMIRITHRE

Six months ended 31 December
HZ1283181E~EA

2018 2017
20184 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEEZ)

Current — Hong Kong BER — &%

Charge for the period HI < 5,737 5,320

Overprovision in prior periods M EE R R A - (27)
Current — Elsewhere BN EA— H fth 30 (2

Charge for the period HAN 2 1,255 1,016

(Overprovision)/underprovision in BT (BEERE),

prior periods BEIR 26 9

Deferred s (199) 512
Total tax charge for the period HA ) ¢ 8 A <2 4R B 6,819 6,812
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8. DIVIDENDS

8. KR

Six months ended 31 December
HZE1283181E~EA

2018 2017
2018 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEEZR)
Dividend recognised as distribution HABREDIRZRE :
during the period:
Final dividend for the year ended B E2018%F6H30H ILFE
30 June 2018: ZARERE
HK2.35 cents (year ended 30 June BlREBR2.358W (BE
2017: HK2.2 cents) per ordinary 201756 A30H ILFE :
share 2.27%L) 17,587 16,464
Dividend proposed after the end of the MEHAREBEIRES
reporting period:
Interim dividend for the six months BHZE2018%F12A318 &
ended 31 December 2018: NEAZHHERE
HKO0.65 cent (six months ended FREBR0.658 1
31 December 2017: HK0.55 cent) (B=2017F12A31H
per ordinary share LE7RME A ¢ 0.55%811) 4,922 4,142

The proposed interim dividend of HKO0.65 cent per ordinary
share in respect of the year ending 30 June 2019 was approved
by the board of directors on 27 February 2019. The interim
dividend of HKO0.55 cent per ordinary share in respect of
the year ended 30 June 2018 was approved by the board of
directors on 27 February 2018.

The final dividend of HK2.35 cents per ordinary share in
respect of the year ended 30 June 2018 was approved by the
Company’s shareholders at the annual general meeting held
on 15 November 2018. The final dividend of HK2.2 cents
per ordinary share in respect of year ended 30 June 2017 was
approved by the Company’s shareholders at the annual general
meeting held on 30 November 2017.

BEAEE2019F6 8308 L FE 2 K
FEARR B IR E B A%0.6578 20194
2A27HEEE S E - BEEHE2018
FoABRIEFEZFHRESGREB®
f%0.5578 102018 F2 A27H EE =T
HeAE o

BREAE £2018F6A30H L FE 2 K H
% B A% EA% 2. 358 ILFR2018411 A
ISR BRRBAFARS LEARQ A
AR #LE - BE#E E20175F6 A308 Ik
FEZARBARESRERR2.2BMWLR
201711 HA30R BT e RRBAFRE
LEARQFREIE o
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EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is based
on the unaudited consolidated loss for the six months ended
31 December 2018 attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company of HK$16,501,000, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 747,501,870 in issue during the
period. The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount
for the six months ended 31 December 2017 was based on
the unaudited consolidated profit of HK$17,683,000, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 741,097,571
in issue during the period, on the assumption that the

capitalisation issue had been completed on 1 July 2015.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share
amount presented for the six months ended 31 December 2018
in respect of a dilution as the impact of the potential dilutive
ordinary shares outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the
basis loss per share amount presented for the six months ended
31 December 2018. The calculation of the diluted earnings per
share amount is based on the unaudited consolidated profit
for the six months ended 31 December 2017 attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company of HK$17,683,000.
The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the
calculation is the number of ordinary shares of 741,097,571 in
issue during the period, as used in the basic earnings per share
calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 19,792,734 assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise of all share options into

ordinary shares.

ARAREERBEREARLSE
BREF,(EE)

BE2018F12A31BEAEA 2 &
BREAEBEBESENERBARARQRFE
BAEGFEAEBLERACEREESEBR
16,501,000/ 7T & B A B 85 77 & @ Ak
DNHE E 5B #747,501,8700 51 & - &
FE2017F12A31BLEARNEARA 2 BRE
REMNEEDERBARKEZES
F/H17,683,0008 ;c R BBAE BT E
A IS R E741,097,5718% 5
H o WREEFRBEITER2015F7A
1B 78R °

WEE P E E2018F12 8318 1E <
BAZMNzBRERNBECEIIEGHZ
BRE  BRARTENECEEER
B B A =2018F 128318 1< B
HEMZNESRERNEBER RS
ERE GREERMNNSBEIHENRAR
REBERFE ABGEZE2017F12
A31BILEAEANREEZEE FE
17,683,000/ Tat & « st EFTARN LB
RN RE AT EGRERRFFT
BB E 317741,097,5710% & B R%
HE  UERBREINFEEREREERD
TEREERE  REEFABITHT
AR DN AE I RR 219,792,734 0% ©
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10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

11.

During the six months ended 31 December 2018, additions of
property, plant and equipment amounted to HK$7,051,000 (six
months ended 31 December 2017: HK$65,197,000).

10. % - BMEKRXHE

REZ=2018F12A31H 1751 A 5
M -AEVE BMELERRKEEERE A
7,051,000/ 7T (B, 22017512 H31H
IENMEA : 65,197,000% 7T) °

GOODWILL 1. &
31 December 30 June
2018 2018
20184 20184
12A31H8 6H30H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (lEE=Z)
At beginning of period/year 5, F 1) 62,637 41,357
Acquisition of subsidiaries/businesses W RE BT B8 A R),
(note 17) (F5E17) 44,163 21,280
At end of period/year B/ ExR 106,800 62,637

The goodwill as at 31 December 2018 included provisional
goodwill of HK$44,163,000 and HK$21,280,000 arising from
acquisitions of businesses during the six months ended 31
December 2018 and year ended 30 June 2018, respectively
as the Group is in the process of completing valuation to
assess the fair values of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. The provisional goodwill may be adjusted
upon the completion of the initial accounting for the business
combinations during the measurement period, which shall not
exceed one year from the respective acquisition dates.

M2018F12A31A 2 M EBBEREBE
201812 A318 L/ A R#E £2018
FoRAAEFEBWRBERMEE
2 EEEE D R 544,163,000 7T K&
21,280,000 7T - [RERANE B FTE 5T
FX—IEREAl - DARERE AT 3% BI04 Uk g &
ERFMAEABENAAEE REKE
HUPARTKE BEEAREBERG
=SHR(ABATESBAMBAKERSR
T—F) N T AT -
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12. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST/ 12. RBERLFTENEREE

HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS BFEZIHRE
31 December 30 June
2018 2018
20185 20184
12A31H 6H30H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEXK) (& EZ)
Financial assets at amortised cost SREE REBHEAAKTE 66,760 =
Analysed into: DITE
Non-current portion JEENERER 54,372 -
Current portion BN ER&f 5 12,388 -
66,760 -
Debt investments, amortised cost BRERE  REBHEAATE - 69,497
Analysed into: DHTHE
Non-current portion FERNEAER = 58,570
Current portion BVER &R 7 = 10,927
- 69,497
As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s financial assets/debt 2018512 A31H - R&E BIRE K
investments at amortised cost have fixed maturity dates A ENeRMEE BEHREARTE
between 2018 and 2023 and fixed interest rates ranging from 2018 £2023F 2 MR EEF A -
4.25% to 8.5% per annum (30 June 2018: 4.25% to 8.5% per EBFFEANF4.25%%E8.5% (20184
annum). 6A30H : FMENF4.25%ZE8.5%) °
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13. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 13. BAREEFARMEEEA
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ WERE TTHHEERE
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

31 December 30 June
2018 2018
20185 2018%F
12A31H 6H30H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (&%)
Investments at fair value through other &2 R EE A
comprehensive income Htt2EBRANKRE
Unlisted equity investments, FEETMRARE
at fair value BAREBEE 11,013 -
Listed debt investments, at fair value FHEHKESE
BERnEEHNE 5,702 -
16,715 =
Available-for-sale investments AMHERE
Unlisted equity investments, at cost FELFTMRAKRE - ARG E - 4,146
Listed debt investments, at fair value EHEBEE
BARBENE - 5,702
- 9,848
The above investments were designated at fair value through NEREBEEHERRAABENAEM
other comprehensive income as the Group considers these ZHEA  BAFREERSLEFREE
investments to be strategic in nature. ME FEBRIEIRE -
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14. TRADE RECEIVABLES

14. EZ BWRE

31 December 30 June

2018 2018

20184 20184

12A31H 6H30H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHET FHET

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEZX) (fe &%)

Trade receivables B 5 WA 83,207 78,800

The Group’s trading terms with its contract customers are
mainly on credit. The credit period is generally one month,
extending up to two months for major customers. Each
contract customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
and has a designated policy to monitor and minimise credit
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An aging analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss

allowance, is as follows:

AEBEEENEPZEFIRRETEN
EETAET - FEEH-—RKR/IEAR -
HIBRPAEERE2EA - -BHEH
EPHRERSEREE - ARE AKX
BREEBUGRRET BB ES - 1R
BEERE - AERY&EERBRE
RE - BHESROASREEEETHE
B - AEME W EFZF B 5 EUGRIAR
BRACMERARKEMERRAR
IR o B HRURETE S ©

RBERRNE HRUGKBRERAH
IR ERBENRESTAOT

31 December 30 June

2018 2018

20184 20184

128318 6H30H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHE T

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEZ) (&%)

Within 1 month R EDER 58,340 56,718
1 to 2 months 12218 A 17,201 11,802
2 to 3 months 2ZE3fE A 5,774 3,216
Over 3 months 31E A A = 1,892 7,064
83,207 78,800
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15. TRADE PAYABLES
An aging analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

15. ES EMAFIE

RBERRNE S RN KBRERAY
HBRER DTN T -

31 December 30 June

2018 2018

20185 20184

12A31H 6H30H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FER THET

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEZ) (f8 &%)

Within 1 month & AR 27,154 18,318
1 to 3 months 1£E31E A 16,302 20,318
Over 3 months 31E A E 625 516
44,081 39,152

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on terms of ranging from 30 to 90 days.

BRNFRIBARREBE—RNI0KRE
AAEE -

16. SHARE CAPITAL 16. B2
31 December 30 June
2018 2018
20184 20184
12A31H 6H30H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RE&EZ) (&%)
Authorised: JERE
5,000,000,000 (30 June 2018: 5,000,000,0008% (201846 A30
5,000,000,000) ordinary shares H : 5,000,000,0000% ) & % HE
of HK$0.001 (30 June 2018: f80.0015 7T (2018%F6 8308 :
HK$0.001) each 0.001787T) /) & B A% 5,000 5,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRER
757,218,000 (30 June 2018: 757,218,0008% (201846 A30
753,405,000) ordinary H : 753,405,0008%) &R E &
shares of HK$0.001 (30 June 2018: 0.0017% 7T (20186 308 :
HK$0.001) each 0.00177T) #) B AX 757 753
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16. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The movements in the Company’s authorised and issued share

capital during the period from 1 July 2017 to 31 December

16. lRZA (&)

M2017F7 818 E2018%12 A318 Hf
B ARBIHETE R B BITRAZE) M0

2018 are as follows: ™~
Number of Nominal value
ordinary of ordinary
shares shares
ZEREE ZEREE
Notes HK$’000
M 5 FHET
Authorised: SETE
At 1 July 2017, at 31 December 20177818 -
2017, at 30 June 2018, MR2017F12H31H »
at 1 July 2018 and at 31 201856 H30H -
December 2018 20187 H1H
& p2018%12A31H 5,000,000,000 5,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRBHHMRE
At 1 July 2017 2017567 H18 737,492,000 737
Exercise of share options 1718 B R (a) 15,913,000 16
At 30 June 2018 and at 1 July 2018 7201846 HA30H KR
2018F7H1H 753,405,000 753
Exercise of share options 171 B AL (b) 3,813,000 4
At 31 December 2018 72018F12H31H 757,218,000 757
(@) The subscription rights attaching to (i) 14,700,000 (@) (i)14,700,00017 B A% A2 BT B FR B A2

share options were exercised at the subscription price
of HK$1.2228 per share, resulting in the issue of
14,700,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each for a total
cash consideration, before expenses, of HK$17,975,000;
and (ii) 1,213,000 share options were exercised at the
subscription price of HK$1.27 per share, resulting in
the issue of 1,213,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.001
each for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of
HK$1,541,000. An aggregate amount of HK$5,401,000
was transfer from the share-based payment reserve to the
share premium account upon the exercise of the share
options.

RREETR.22288 TITF
LA B3 1714,700,0000% & A% ™ &
0.001B Lz EMAR - MBEHAX
Al 2B e REHETER17,975,000
IT ¢ M(ii)1,213,00017 88 A% 4 P
MREBERABESRI27E T
171F - LABUEE1T1,213,0000% & i
EE0.001& T2 E AR - Ik
SR BE &R EHLEEA1,541,000
BT -RITEBEKRER & H#
5,401,000/ 7T % IE B AR (0 7 &
W2 R FEEERERMDEER -
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16. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(b)  The subscription rights attaching to (i) 2,600,000 share
options were exercised at the subscription price of
HK$1.2228 per share, resulting in the issue of 2,600,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each for a total cash
consideration, before expenses, of HK$3,179,000;
and (ii) 1,213,000 share options were exercised at the
subscription price of HK$1.27 per share, resulting in
the issue of 1,213,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.001
each for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of
HK$1,541,000. An aggregate amount of HK$1,489,000
was transfer from the share-based payment reserve to the
share premium account upon the exercise of the share

options.

17. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

In order to increase the range of healthcare services offered
and to continually provide comprehensive and integrated
healthcare services for the benefit of the patients, the Group
entered into the following transactions during the six months
ended 31 December 2018:

On 24 July 2018, the Group entered into a sales and purchase
agreement with a third party to acquire 70% equity interest in
a group of companies (collectively known as Physiotherapy
Centre Chain) for a consideration of HK$28,470,000. The
Physiotherapy Centre Chain is engaged in the provision of
medical physiotherapy service in Hong Kong.

On 2 October 2018, the Group acquired 55% equity interest
in a medical clinic business (“Medical Clinic Business”),
which operates general practice medical services, from an
independent third party for a consideration of HK$15,122,000.

16. lRZA (&)

(b)  (i)2,600,00017 & i% # Fr i 32 5% 4
RREETR2228BTITHFE
LA Bt 8 172,600,000% & f% @ &
0.001B Tz ERKR  MKRAX
Al 2R e R EHETER3, 179,000
T - M (ii)1,213,00017) B8 L AE AT
MREERRABESRI2ZET
7T1F - LABUEE1T1,213,0000% & i
E{E0.001B T2 @Kk - MNEKRFH
XAz BE &R ELTER1,541,000
BT -RITEBRER &%
1,489,000/ 7T X IB R LARR 19 A&
M2 R EBEBRERMDEERR -

17. ¥4 6t

RERNEZERERGESHE  UREESR
BERBGEMTENERRERT -
AEBREE2018F12A318 LN A
AT RS

M2018F7H248 - AEEE—FE=
FEIMN BB ek 0 bA28,470,000 7T 2
REWE—QAREE (SBAREHYE
VR Z70%MKHE o % BB IR S
BROEBARERHEBEYMIEGER
ﬁ% o

R2018F10A2H » K& B K
15,122,000 T 2 RER— BB E=
FE—EEREYER ([BEZM
E%1) (R 2R 8 ERT) 255%
e o
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17. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

The provisional fair values of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of Physiotherapy Centre Chain and Medical Clinic

17. £ &6t )

B R R R L R E
AHEMNEEMABERHERBEERR

BROMER L

Business as at the respective dates of acquisition were as BERARBEWT
follows:
Provisional
fair value
Medical recognised
Physiotherapy Clinic on business
Centre Chain Business combinations
EBEHE
EHYE BEREDM BANEE
AEH L #i% DREHE
Note HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
i FAET FAET FHET
Property, plant and equipment ¥ % - i E & &5 762 - 762
Deposits and other receivables — {R#E & & H b EUL A 3,247 3 3,250
Cash and bank balances He RIBITHER 597 58 655
Trade payables, other payables & 5 & it 5018
and accruals HoAth FE 5 5RIE
fEsTE R (4,874) = (4,874)
Due to fellow subsidiaries ANIE B E=NGIE ¢ - (73) (73)
Tax payable & 4 T 7R (21) - 21)
Total identifiable net liabilities &A1 BESIEMN
at fair value A#EAFEEREE (289) (12) (301)
Non-controlling interests JEVR AR RE 2R (275) 5 (270)
(564) (7) (571)
Goodwill on acquisition WEBELAHHE 11 29,034 15,129 44,163
Total consideration BRE 28,470 15,122 43,592
Satisfied by: A TRFIRIBER
Cash consideration RENKE 28,470 15,122 43,592
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17. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 17. %i’%AﬁWﬂ

74

The goodwill arising from the above acquisitions is determined on
a provisional basis as the Group is in the process of completing
valuation to assess the fair values of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. The provisional fair values recognised on
acquisition as shown above may be adjusted upon the completion
of the initial accounting for the business combinations during the
measurement period, which shall not exceed one year from the
acquisition.

The fair values of the other receivables as at the dates of
business combinations amounted to HK$1,980,000. The gross
contractual amounts of other receivables was HK$1,980,000.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$44,000 for these
business combinations. These transaction costs have been
expensed and are included in other expenses, net, in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Goodwill arising from the acquisitions of the Physiotherapy
Centre Chain and Medical Clinic Business represented
premium paid for the benefits of expected synergies
from combining operations of the Physiotherapy Centre
Chain, Medical Clinic Business and the Group to provide
comprehensive and integrated services for the patients. None
of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for tax

purposes.

inﬂﬁlﬁ%ﬁﬁjgiﬂ’lﬁﬁﬁiﬁ&amﬁﬁﬁﬁ
HE - REEAEEIEETR BTG
DA%EEJE%%UE’J%&Hﬁ(ﬁ%ﬁé&ﬁﬁﬁk%%
BEORAARBE REBEHDTART
Rtk - ERATRERBEmMEROEGER
RBENTEHRE (RRTSBRKERL
FEF) AR T IATE -

HEEWRIBEREBESHBHNAAE
{8 741,980,000/8 7T - H b UL 3 Em
B HHE S % 51,980,000 7T °

REERLEERAHEER HHRA
44,00087C ° WER HKAE ZHEW AT
AGREBEROEMAS FE -

WisEE YRRt O RBEDED
?EEE@ﬁég?a?dﬁﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁftfi‘\{ﬁ@ﬁ%i%m
B BE u/ﬁﬁ%f“&$ﬁl7%$%
REGA R —BILREHNEET KO
Hxﬁ(ﬁﬁ’]xﬁl/\ﬁﬁﬁzﬁﬁ’mﬂf o BRI
REABERAIEIBZA -
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17. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 17. E% S 6F ()
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the combinations of BREHYIBREP O RBEDMER
the Physiotherapy Centre Chain and Medical Clinic Business is ZAMZRERESFWOT
as follows:
HK$’000
TETT
Cash Consideration ReRE (43,592)
Cash and bank balances acquired P B3R & MERTT 45 84 655
Decrease in deposit paid for FFEWE—E
acquisition of a subsidiary MEBARZ
in the prior year SRS 6,000
Net outflow of cash and cash SAREESMARSREAN
equivalents included in cash flows Re B SEYRLFRE
used in investing activities (36,937)
Since the combinations, the contributions to the Group’s A HASEHZE2018F12A31
revenue and consolidated loss for the six months ended HIEAREANBMARGEEBEER A
31 December 2018 were as follows: N
Revenue Profit
A A
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT THERT
Physiotherapy Centre Chain EHEYIERED L 5,501 1,104
Medical Clinic Business BEDMER 3,653 1,068
9,154 2,172
Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the fima GER B Z=2018F12A318 LE/N @
six months ended 31 December 2018, the revenue of the AT REBEE20185124
Group and the loss of the Group for the six months ended 3B EREANKRAREER S R &R
31 December 2018 would have been HK$265,881,000 and 265,881,000/ 7T }212,246,00078 T

HK$12,246,000, respectively.
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18.

19.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group leases certain of its office properties, medical
centres and office equipment under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms
ranging from 1 to 9 years. Certain leases are terminable with
notice periods of 2 to 3 months given by the Group.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling

due as follows:

REHERE
AEERBEEHERHHEAEETH
DNYE - BHEPLEPARME - WEH
EFHKERRIZEIF - ETHEWTH
AEEET223ME B AVBAEK L

18.

MR2018F12A831H  REBEBERT
FIRHAR BN T RS EHERER
RRFEHEERBRENOT ¢

31 December 30 June

2018 2018

20185 20184

12A31H 6H30H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEEXK) (8 &%)

Within one year —F R 35,780 21,859
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_ERAF(BIEEEMF) 45,885 19,015
Over fifth years ERFR 53 53
81,718 40,927

COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 18 above, the Group had the following capital

19. &
B b8 B A S L TR E AR
oh o RIBEERR - REE N EARED

commitments at the end of the reporting period: N
31 December 30 June
2018 2018
2018%F 2018%F
12A31H 6H30H
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FET
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)

Contracted, but not provided for: ERTAERERE -

Leasehold improvements HEWMEEE 430 181
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment  {R{B £ & &I A =R E - 61
Medical equipment BRERXE = 1,065
Computer equipment and software Bl BN - 1,289
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 22) W g — 1 B B8 2 =) (BT aE22) 47,500 22,470
47,930 25,066
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20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 20. BB AR S
(@) In addition to the transactions, arrangements and @) BEZERACEZBRALEE T
balances detailed elsewhere in these unaudited BHRFEMBEFRNR S - 2
condensed consolidated interim financial statements, R EEsRAN - AREB R BRI E RIS
the Group had the following material transactions with BUTERRS

related parties during the period:

Six months ended 31 December

BZ12A318LEAREAR
2018 2017
2018%F 20174
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i TER TET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBER) (REEERZ)
Associates: AN
Administrative support fee income 1T & B KA (i) 290 273
Professional services expense EERKER (ii) 2,384 2,352
Healthcare services income BRERERS KA (iii) 126 163
Joint ventures: EE-WNCIE
Administrative support fee income  TE S ERE U A (i) 193 =
Professional services expense EXRBER (ii) 70 =
Related companies*: NI
Administrative support fee income  TH & B U A (i) 45 89
Professional services expense EERBKER (ii) 2,131 1,831
Healthcare services income ERRERERA (iii) 168 186
Property rental and related MERL RIABERX (iv)
expenses 3,454 2,795
Contract healthcare solution BRBERERR (v)
services income FRBRBULA 8,285 6,155
Management fee income EEEIA (vi) 3,630 2,985
+ Certain directors and/or beneficial shareholders of the & AARETERR AEHZRE
Company are also directors and/or beneficial shareholders of MBZEEBAANESE R 5
these related companies. EmBRER -
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20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(Continued)

(@)

(b)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

The administrative support fee income was related to
administrative support services, such as payroll services,
rendered by the Group and was charged at terms mutually
agreed between the relevant parties.

The professional services expense was related to healthcare
services rendered by associates, joint ventures and the related
companies and was charged at terms mutually agreed between
the relevant parties.

The healthcare services income was related to medical
services rendered by the Group and was charged at terms
mutually agreed between the relevant parties.

The property rental and related expenses were related to
the leasing of certain medical centres or premises for the
Group’s operation and were charged at terms stipulated in the
respective tenancy agreements.

Contract healthcare solution services income was related
to the provision of healthcare services to the employees of
related companies and was charged at terms mutually agreed
between the relevant parties.

The management fee income was related to the administrative
and management services rendered by the Group and
was charged at terms stipulated in the respective service
agreements.

Other transactions with related parties
Professional services fees paid to the executive directors

of the Company in relation to the rendering of healthcare

(@)

(b)

20. BEES KRB (®)

(%)

(g

(D

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

TR B B A B R SR 4R
RER BN E 2 R E
B H N IR TS ST SR RS B R -

SERBEMABZNE GERQ
B KRR N AR Gt B 8 R AR 2 AR
AL ARBRE T HE N ED
G & -

B8 AR 2 IR 75 A LR 5% 4R {1
I 4% SR B 75 B AR W E 2 1R
ENBEERGAR -

WEES LA B AR E
BEHEETEBDLREES
Bl 42 B M E W R E 2 R
BERH -

BRERRREBRT ZERBKA
HE B ARNERRELIZEE
TR 7 B AR E 2 U E B B
BERERBER -

EEERRAERKNEERERNT
B ERREEELRESBR
T 15 5% P AR E RN UL & -

HibBAB S X5
AARBRTESEXNEBAAX
SERUBEEREZRBOERR

services to the Group are as follows: BEWNT :
Six months ended 31 December
BZ12A318 <@ A
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx T T
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEER) (R&EZ)
Executive directors (note (i) HITEE (W) 3,221 1,217
Note: MieE -

(i)

The professional services fee related to healthcare services
rendered by Dr. Sun Man Kin Michael and Dr. Lee Pak
Cheung Patrick, executive directors of the Company.

(i)

EXMBEEARAANTES
BAXBREERFHFEERKEN
BREREREERH



2018/2019 A EisR &

o>
B
N>

=

TAPAN
[

Gy

5
A

BAERRAR

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements

RS 2 B F R R Y =

20. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 20.

(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the

BEAIRXS @
(0 XEBXTESEASHMH

Group:
Six months ended 31 December
BE12A318EXEAR
2018 2017
2018%F 201745
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT THET
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEXK) (REEZ)
Short term employee benefits % E B R A 7,381 7,241
Post-employment benefits B 3L 12 12 A 40 40
Equity-settled share option expense  LAMEZS AL E BB R X2 1,068 944
Total compensation paid to key TNFEEEEAEN
management personnel AR 8,489 8,225

21. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 21.

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade receivables, trade
payables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, financial liabilities included in other
payables, accruals and deferred income, balances with a joint
venture, related companies and associates approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities/no
fixed terms of repayments of these instruments or the effect of

discounting is not material.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The fair values of listed equity and debt investments are based

on quoted market prices.

Fair value hierarchy
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

EMIANDAEERARE
BEE®H

BEREFME RERALEEY B
ERER - BHRUE - BHBAR
Bt ABNRE  RES RA MK
HIEMSRAE « 5t A KN R -
i EARBEERAMSBEAN - B
MABAR - WBARREEARGS
MARBEREEERE EEAZS
T A BIHE R E T E S R IR
REERFEALTERX -

TRHEENBENAABEZABERS
77 (MeEaEsBRIFEE) REMR ST
RBHZTENEBARK -

EHBREREFRENAABERERA
FAMZHREETE -

DREEER
TR ASESH T AN AR EER
EFH:
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21. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 21. eI EMNAABERAAE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) BEE & @)
Assets measured at fair value: BADS uFﬁﬁ‘sE’JﬁE
As at 31 December 2018 (unaudited) A2018F128318 (KRB EX)

Fair value measurement using
DAEBEFERANEE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

EXRTERE EXFUHEE

ERTERE BARE BABE

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(88 —#) (BZ#) (BE=4) wmEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THER THER THER THET
Investments at fair value through R QA2 BEFTA
other comprehensive income: HAh 2 ERA
MRE
Debt investments EBKRE = 5,702 = 5,702
Unlisted equity investments FE E AR AR
A& - - 11,013 11,013
Financial assets at fair value BARBEA
through profit or loss B
TREE 2,288 - - 2,288
2,288 5,702 11,013 19,003
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21. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (Continued)
As at 30 June 2018 (audited)

Quoted prices

BABBEREERAA

BER @

21. ERMITEMNAABERAIAE

RARBENENEE (&)

201846 A308 (KFEZ)

Fair value measurement using
DREEFERANEE

Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
BEAAEBE EAIAEHE
ARTISWmE i A BUR W A BUE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—H) (=) (B=%) #mEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Available-for-sale investments: AtHERE
Debt investments BERIRE - 5,702 - 5,702
Equity investments at fair value &2 7 BEFA
through profit or loss BEH
AR E 2,427 = _ 2,427
2,427 5,702 - 8,129
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21.

22.

23.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

During the period, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for financial assets (six months ended 31
December 2017: Nil).

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value as at 31 December 2018 (30 June 2018: Nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On 23 January 2019 (“Completion Date”), the Group has

completed an acquisition of 60% equity interest in a medical
centre principally providing dermatological services in Hong
Kong from an independent third party for a consideration of
HK$100,000,000, out of which the deposit of HK$30,000,000
has been paid during the reporting period and an amount of
HK$47,500,000 in cash was paid on the Completion Date. The
remaining sum of HK$22,500,000 as post-closing sum to be
settled by the allotment and issue of an aggregate of 7,500,000
Shares by the Company at the issue price of HK$3.00 per
Share on the Tst anniversary of the Completion Date (being 22
January 2020), unless occurrence of certain events. Please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 22 November
2018 and 23 January 2019 and the circular of the Company
dated 24 December 2018 for details.

Save as aforesaid, there was no material acquisition or disposal
of subsidiaries undertaken by the Group after 31 December
2018 and up to the date of this report.

APPROVAL OF THE UNAUDITED
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial
statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
Board on 27 February 2019.

21.

22.

23.

TRTENAIABERAIAE
BE&K @

PR eRMEES—EBHE_E M
WEANBEFEER  TEEZNE
HE=B(HZE2017F12A8318 1L~ E
A &) -

MR2018F12H31H » AN & E W & T [
BARBESEMNSRHEAE (20185F6 8
30H ) o

HREHESEMH
R2019F1A238 (TR B H]) » K

£ [E 52 A% A 100,000,000 7T 2 X (& &)
—RBUFE=FRE-RABEKPL (K
FEEABEHREERRE) 260%M%
# - ZFE30,000,0008 iR £ B R R
L HIRM AR M M47,500,00078 7T E 72 58
B B ERLAIR € AT o #23K22,500,000%
T (ERR BB FHIE) BEBEARRRTHK
AHZ —E4 (B12020%F1 8228 ) & 5%
TESRRM3.008 il META K
7,500,0000% f% 9 < 75 S A+ - MEEE A&
ETEHRRI - FEFL2HARAE A
H5RA2018F 11 A22H %2019 18
23A 2 R ENURAR R A BHR20184
12A248B 23K °

Br BB ASN » REER2018F12 A
JIHEREEAFREHES KUE
s EMBAR -

HEREELEHAZS DY
%=

RAEBZEREEPHEMERRER
20192 A27 HIEE E 2 #t F K& #E T
% o
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“1HFY2018”
[20183 BRF & £ F |

“1HFY2019”
[20198f BRF & k¥ |

“Affiliated Clinic(s)”

(B P )

“Affiliated Doctor(s)”,
“Affiliated Dentist(s)” or
“Affiliated Auxiliary Services
Provider(s)”

=l =R a
[ B 28 o B AR A 4R 1 2

“Audit Committee”

[BE%ZBE]

“Auxiliary Services”

[ % Bh Bk 75 |

“Auxiliary Services Provider(s)”

[ %5 B IR TS e 1 &

“Board”

B2

BABBEREERA

Definitions

BE

six months ended 31 December 2017;
HZE2017F12A3181LEXER

six months ended 31 December 2018;
HZE2018F12A3181EXER

clinic(s) which is/are not operated by the Group but which has entered or will
enter into an agreement directly with the Group to offer Medical Services,
Dental Services and/or Auxiliary Services to the Plan Members;
VIHFMAEELZ2EACHNHERARNKETEBRENDMH - B A EIKER
HEBERY - TRRE & REB IR

doctor(s)/dentist(s)/auxiliary services provider(s) who has entered or will enter
into an agreement directly with the Group to provide services to Plan Members
and who, in accordance with the terms of such agreement, has received or
will receive an amount from the Group based on the volume of Plan Members
treated;
BEREEGEEAEET L BERMRSE TAEKENELE TR RS
RMUE  REZSHRGT  RESIHREDHOEINXBRE MA LB W
R

the audit committee of the Board;

E=eB IER%8e:

includes imaging and laboratory services, physiotherapy, traditional Chinese
medicine, vision care and optometry and child health assessment;
BRESEFERXMRRYE WEAE TE RHMEERBIUARTZERFEE
T A

auxiliary services provider(s) who is/are or will be engaged directly by the
Group as a consultant to provide Auxiliary Services in the UMP Medical
Centres in accordance with the terms of a consultancy agreement with the
Group, and the Affiliated Auxiliary Service Providers;

ERNHEEX AR BRI R R ARIR AL B 5 7] 7Y BR ) 15 &% A IR 5 Bt
BEBPOAREHDRENHMGIREE - URBEHRGIRHESE

the board of Directors of the Company;
ARBERSE
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Definitions

Bx

“Code of Conduct for Securities

Transactions by Employees”

[(BEETESXHNETER

“Company” or “UMP”
AN oy L

“Contract Customers”

“Corporate Governance Code”
[ E8 A

“CR Medical”

[EHEE]
“Dental Services”
[ 7 Bt AR %5
“Dentist(s)”

[T & |

“Director(s)”

=
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the Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Employees as adopted by
the Company;
ARG AEBETESFXZNRTLER

UMP Healthcare Holdings Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of
the Cayman Islands with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the
main board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 722);
BEBHEEARQAR  —HRERSHSAZEMAINBRAF - HEHD
REB %xﬁﬁiﬁiim (Bn 5%« 722)

collectively, insurance companies and corporations which have entered or
will enter into corporate plans with the Group for healthcare benefits for Plan
Members;

LAt B BREREEN S EANREFTZIEXRFTENRR AR RERNL
E

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules;

EWRRAIME4E R E AT

China Resources Medical Holdings Company Limited (Formerly China
Resources Phoenix Healthcare Holdings Company Limited), a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and listed on the
Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 1515);

EHRBERZERARAR RIBEEREBRIERERAR)  —HERSHEHE

ML ER BB ER EMARAE (RHNRSE : 1515)

include primary dental services such as scaling and polishing and secondary
dental services such as crown and bridge, orthodontics, implants and
whitening;
BIEERITRIRD (5T ki) ARE =
Il fEHEhkFExa)

B BIBRTS (a0 F B R oA s - A

dentist(s) who is/are or will be engaged directly by the Group as a consultant
to provide Dental Services in the UMP Medical Centres in accordance with the
terms of a consultancy agreement with the Group, and the Affiliated Dentists;

ERUBERERASERRE BN LMETFE@ﬁ’% 1 %5 5T ) JEB ] 175 k A9 1R KA B
BEBTOANRMRSH TR - A KR

the director(s) of the Company;
ZAN/NYST -
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“Doctor(s)”

(&84 ]

“general practitioner” or
“general practice”

[2MEE IS [2HER]

“Global Offering”

[2IREE]

"o

“Group”, “we”, “our” or “us”

[ ® )5 [ 5P

“Healthcare Ventures”

[Healthcare Ventures ]

//HK$//
[l

“Hong Kong”
[H]

“Hong Kong & Macau Clinical
Healthcare Services”

[ 78 KR P I IR 88 B AR 2 AR 7%

BABBEREERAA

Definitions

BE

doctor(s) who is/are or will be engaged directly by the Group as a consultant to
provide Medical Services in the UMP Medical Centres in accordance with the
terms of a consultancy agreement with the Group, and the Affiliated Doctors;
EREBERTARE RIS AR R 8N R B 35 5] 70 B8 [ 6 2 &0 1R SR AE B
BEHBTLAERERENES  UREEER

doctors trained in general practice and best suited to act as first point of
contact for patients, having the required knowledge to refer patients to the
appropriate specialists or services as required;

BEXEMIIRNELE  REARBERHEARZYE CAGBRFSEENRER
B A FER SRS TR B A

the offer of the shares of the Company to the public in Hong Kong and outside
the United States of America in offshore transactions in reliance on Regulation
S, the details of which are set out in “Structure of the Global Offering” of the
Prospectus;
ARRBAEBRRREKBESEOIEEXNBEEREFINEERZHEEORD
FRERNERER(2REENRE]

the Company and its subsidiaries;

ARFAREKBAF

Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited, a company incorporated under the
laws of British Virgin Islands with limited liability, which is a substantial
shareholder of the Company and wholly-owned subsidiary of Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited;

Healthcare Ventures Holdings Limited » — AR & & & & Z B & /AR MR &Y
BERARF REARANEERRLBARBELEEERAFANZEMBLF

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong;

BEEREERRT

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC;
FEEBRFRIITHRE

provision of clinical healthcare services to Self-paid Patients as described in
“Business Overview and Outlook” of this report;

mEEBERERRERFRERS MAREZBELBENREE |
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UMP HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Definitions

Bx

“Hong Kong & Macau Corporate
Healthcare Solution Services”
[ &8 MBI X BERIERR
ES T
“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”
or “Stock Exchange”
[ &R 3P ) 3 [ B 32 P )
“Listing Rules”

[EmAA

“Macau”

&P ]

“Medical” or “Medical Services”

(& BER

“Model Code”
[1Z <7 Al

“NHS system”
[REBEREFRERGER]

“Plan Members”
[5H&IRK 8 |

“Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”
[BRAF % SR ERERS
//PRC//

[ B
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provision of corporate healthcare solutions as described in “Business Overview
and Outlook” of this report;
RECEBEREBERTR  WARS[EHLERRE]

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited;

FEMARHABRAT
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock

Exchange;

BB rES EMARA

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC;
R EDRFIAFRITTIRE

includes general practice and specialist practice;

BREMEBEREMEE

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules;

EHRAMEI0OME LB TAETETESRRXZNRETH

National Health Service system;

HEBERBEFERIERGER

members of the Group’s corporate healthcare benefits plans, who typically
include group medical insurance policyholders and employees of corporations
and/or their dependants;
AEECXBREREEMNFAEKE  —K
MEER FREZREAN

EREEERRRRERE ANRKE

the post-IPO share option scheme approved and adopted by the Board on 2
November 2015;
BEEER2015F 11 A2AAERRMANERAFEERBETS

the People’s Republic of China (excluding, for the purpose of this report, Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan);

hEARAAME RABEME - FREEE  RPIRAE)
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“PRC Healthcare Business”

[P B R X7 )

“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”

[B RN 5 3 & AR A AT &1

“Prospectus”

[BERER]

“Remuneration Committee”

(HENZE g
“Self-paid Patients”
(BEEE]

“SFO”

[ 78 77 R HE 1561
“Share(s)”

[ A7

“Share Award Scheme”

[Befn 2Byt 1)

“specialist practice” or
“specialist services”

[EREE [ ERIRT]

BABBEREERAA

Definitions

BE

consists of PRC health check-up business, PRC corporate healthcare solution
business and within the clinics we own and operate, revenue from selected
outpatient services such as family medicine and paediatric as described in
“Business Overview and Outlook” of this report;

BRETEERES THECXERREBRATREZGUARERMEEREEDN
PREREEFIZRE (WKEBEMZRRE) WA - IMARHRE [ EBE
B RSP

the pre-IPO share option scheme approved and adopted by the Board on 18
August 2015;
E=EN2015F8A18EHERRMM B R AME ERBRE S

the prospectus of the Company dated 17 November 2015;
ARRHBR015F1TAI7ANHBRER

the remuneration committee of the Board;

ExeyMEES

patients who visit a UMP Medical Centre operated by the Group and pay for
services using cash or credit card;

IARERENBABEBTOMPAEARSIERARIAREEANEE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
as amended and supplemented from time to time;

BREPIBSNBECESRBEE) - BB R

ordinary share(s) with a nominal value of HK$0.001 each in the share capital
of the Company;
AR B IRA S FIREE.001E T Z & iBAR

the share award scheme approved and adopted by the Board on 30 June 2016;
EF 270201656 A308 P it A K SR A RO AR 1) 22 R &1 &I -

a range of specialist practice, including Cardiology, Dermatology,
Endocrinology, Diabetes and Metabolism, Family Medicine, Gastroenterology
and Hepatology, General Surgery, Internal Medicine, Nephrology, Neurology,
Neurosurgery, Obstetrics and Gynaecology, Ophthalmology, Orthopaedics and
Traumatology, Otorhinolaryngology (ENT), Paediatrics, Paediatrics Surgery,
Radiology, Respiratory Medicine, Rheumatology and Urology. Please see
www.ump.com.hk for the updated list of specialist practices;

—RINEMER  BRLOER  KER  ADW  BRELRAEHR  KREBS -
B8 MATHEL - BB - AR BRE - BRI BER - BRE
BRKAIGE  ESWMER - B DRI HER - FRAR - BER R
WK B o BRL B 2 48 375 B 55 2 Blwww.ump.com.hk
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Definitions
“UMP China”
(B A B iSh )

“UMP Medical Centre(s)”

o>

[BABHH L]

“UMP Network”

[UMP48 4% |

“Warrants”

“Zheng He”

[ &5 70 ]

2018/2019 INTERIM REPORT

UMP Healthcare China Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of the
Cayman Islands with limited liability and a 80% indirectly owned subsidiary of
the Company;

UMP Healthcare China Limited © —EREF E8 &AM MK ZNBRAF -
RERNFIMERFF0%ERNME AR

medical centre(s) offering Medical Services, Dental Services and/or Auxiliary
Services which is operated by the Group;

REHBERS  TRHRBLIEHREOBEDL  AAEELE

consists of (i) UMP Medical Centres which are operated by the Group and (ii)
Affiliated Clinics which are clinics not operated by the Group but which has
entered into an agreement with the Group to offer Medical Services, Dental
Services and/or Auxiliary Services to Plan Members;

BROAEBRENBSBHEPORMBBL M (LIFRAEELENZH
BEEAREBET Y B MK 8 RHBERY - TRRB K RBEHRS)

an aggregate of 110,411,000 warrants of the Company issued by the Company
on 6 December 2018, and that are exercisable, subject to certain conditions,
onto a total of 110,411,000 new Shares of the Company. Please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 27 July 2018, 30 August 2018 and 6
December 2018 and the circular of the Company dated 29 October 2018 for
details; and

ARRAFR2018F12A6B #1724 $£110,411,0000 AR B RIRERE - BERR
RFEATR(ARFaSE THRE) XRE£110,411,000 N2 ARG - 515 F
2HARARIBES R A201856F7H278 + 2018F8A30H K2018F12A6R 2 A
EUARARATBER2018F10A298 2K : &

Zheng He Health and Medical Resources Limited, a private company limited
by shares incorporated in British Virgin Islands (or such company or trust
which is under the control of Mr. Law Siu Wah, Eddie or his family trust or
estate).

Zheng He Health and Medical Resources Limited + — &5 % 8 j& 22 B & i X
VHFABRDERAR (AR BEEERERERGERAREXREHNBRAA
HIEFE) °
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